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QUESTION 100 (RTP NOVEMBER 18) 

A specific government grant of Rs.15 lakhs was received by USB Ltd. for acquiring the Hi-Tech Diary 

plant of Rs.95 lakhs during the year 2014-15. Plant has useful life of 10 years. The grant received 

was credited to deferred income in the balance sheet. During 2017-18, due to non-compliance of 

conditions laid down for the grant, the company had to refund the whole grant to the 

Government. Balance in the deferred income on that date was Rs.10.50 lakhs and written down 

value of plant was Rs.66.50lakhs. 

(i) What should be the treatment of the refund of the grant and the effect on cost of plant 

and the amount of depreciation to be charged during the year 2017 -18 in profit and loss 
account? 

(ii) What should be the treatment of the refund, if grant was deducted from the cost of the 
plant during 2014-15 assuming plant account showed the balance of Rs.56 lakhs as 
on1.4.2017? 

You are required to explain in the line with provisions of AS 12 . 
ANSWER: 

As per para 21 of AS 12, ‘Accounting for Government Grants’, “the amount refundable in respect 
of a grant related to specific fixed asset should be recorded by  reducing  the deferred income 

balance. To the extent the amount refundable exceeds any such deferred credit, the amount 

should be charged to profit and loss statement. 

(i) In this case the grant refunded is Rs.15 lakhs and balance in deferred income is Rs.10.50 lakhs, 
Rs.4.50 lakhs shall be charged to the profit and loss account for the year 2017-18. There will be 
no effect on the cost of the fixed asset and 
depreciationchargedwillbeonthesamebasisaschargedintheearlieryears. 

(ii) If the grant was deducted from the cost of the plant in the year 2014-15 then, para 21 of AS 

12 states that the amount refundable in respect of grant which  relates to specific fixed assets 

should be recorded by increasing the book value of the assets, by the amount refundable. 
Where the book value of the asset is increased, depreciation on the revised book value 

should be provided prospectively over the residual useful life of the asset. Therefore, in this  

case, the book value of the plant shall be increased by Rs.15 lakhs. The increased cost of Rs.15 
lakhs of the plant should be amortized over 7 years (residual life). Depreciation charged 

during the year 2017-18 shall be (56+15)/7 years= 
Rs.10.14 lakhs presuming the depreciation is charged on SLM. 
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QUESTION 101 (RTP NOVEMBER 18) 

M/s Active Builders Ltd. invested in the shares of another company  (with an intention  to hold 

the shares for short term period )on 31st October, 2016 at a cost of Rs.4,50,000. It also earlier 

purchased Gold of Rs.5,00,000 and Silver of Rs.2,25,000 on 31st March, 2014. 

Market values as on 31st March, 2017 of the above investments are as follows:  

Shares Rs.3,75,000; Gold Rs.7,50,000 and Silver Rs.4,35,000 

You are required explain how will the above investments be shown in the books of account of 

M/s Active Builders Ltd. for the year ending 31st March, 2017 as per the provisions of AS 13? 

ANSWER: 

As per AS 13 ‘Accounting for Investments’, if the shares are purchased with  an  intention to hold 

for short-term period then investment will be shown at the realizable value. In the given case, 

shares purchased on 31st October, 2016, will be valued at Rs.3,75,000 as on 31st March,2017. 

Gold and silver are generally purchased with an intention to hold it for long term period until and 

unless given otherwise. Hence, the investment in gold and silver (purchased on 31st March, 2014) 

shall continue to be shown at cost as on 31st March, 2017 i.e., Rs.5,00,000 and Rs.2,25,000 

respectively, though their realizable values have been increased. 

Thus the shares, gold and silver will be shown at Rs.3,75,000, Rs.5,00,000 and Rs.2,25,000 
respectively and hence, total investment will be valued at Rs.11,00,000 in the books of account of 

M/s Active Builders for the year ending 31 st March, 2017 as per provisions of AS13. 

 

QUESTION 102 (RTP NOVEMBER 18) 

A company incorporated in June 2017, has setup a factory within a period of 8 months with 

borrowed funds. The construction period of the assets had reduced drastically due to usage of 
technical innovations by the company. Whether interest on borrowings for the period prior to the 

date of setting up the factory should  be capitalized although it  has taken less than 12 months for 

the assets to get ready for use. You are required to comment on the necessary treatment with 

reference to AS16. 

ANSWER: 

As  per  para  3.2  to  AS  16  ‘Borrowing  Costs’,  a  qualifying  asset  is  an  asset  that necessarily 

takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. 

Further, Explanation to the above para states that what constitutes a substantial  period of time 
primarily depends on the facts and circumstances of each case. However, ordinarily, a period of 

twelve months is considered as substantial period of time unless a shorter or longer period can be 
justified on the basis of facts and circumstances  of  the  case.  In  estimating  the  period,  time  
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which  an  asset takes, technologically and commercially, to get it ready for its intended use or sale 

is considered. It may be implied that there is a rebuttable presumption that a 12 months period 
constitutes substantial period of time. 

Under present circumstances where construction period has reduced drastically due to technical 

innovation, the 12 months period should at best be looked at as a benchmark and not as a 

conclusive yardstick. It may so happen that an asset under normal circumstances may take more 
than 12 months to complete. However, an enterprise that completes the asset in 8 months should 

not be penalized for its efficiency by denying it interest capitalization and vice versa. 

The substantial period criteria ensures that enterprises do not spend a lot of time and effort 

capturing immaterial interest cost for purposes of capitalization. 

Therefore, if the factory is constructed in 8 months then it shall be considered as a qualifying 

asset. The interest on borrowings for the same shall be capitalised  although it has taken less than 
12 months for the asset to get ready to use. 

 

QUESTION 103 (RTP MAY 19) 

On 31st March 2017, a business firm finds that cost of a partly finished unit on that 

dateisRs.530.Theunitcanbefinishedin2017-18byanadditionalexpenditureof Rs.310. The finished 

unit can be sold for Rs.750 subject to payment of 4% brokerage on selling price. The firm seeks 
your advice regarding the amount at which the unfinished unit should be valued as at 

31stMarch, 2017 for preparation of final accounts. Assume that the partly finished unit cannot 
be sold in semi finished form and its NRV is zero without processing it further. 

ANSWER: 

Valuation of unfinished unit 

 Rs. 

Net selling price 750 

Less: Estimated cost of completion (310) 

 440 

Less: Brokerage (4% of 750) (30) 

Net Realisable Value 410 

Cost of inventory 530 

Value of inventory (Lower of cost and net realisable 
value) 

410 
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QUESTION 104 (RTP MAY 19) 

Preet Ltd. is installing a new plant at its production facility. It has incurred these costs: 

 

1. Cost of the plant (cost per supplier’s invoice plus 
taxes) 

Rs.50,00,000 

2. Initial delivery and handling costs Rs.4,00,000 

3. Cost of site preparation Rs.12,00,000 

4. Consultants used for advice on the acquisition of 
the plant 

Rs.14,00,000 

5. Interest charges paid to supplier of plant for 
deferred credit 

Rs.4,00,000 

6. Estimated dismantling costs to be incurred after 
7 years 

Rs.6,00,000 

7. Operating losses before commercial production Rs.8,00,000 

Please advise Preet Ltd. on the costs that can be capitalised in accordance with AS 10(Revised). 

ANSWER: 

According to AS 10 (Revised), these costs can be capitalised: 

1. Cost of the plant Rs.50,00,000 

2. Initial delivery and handling costs Rs.4,00,000 

3. Cost of site preparation Rs.12,00,000 

4. Consultants’ fees Rs.14,00,000 

5. Estimated dismantling costs to be incurred after 7 
years 

  Rs. 6,00,000 

  Rs. 86,00,000 

Note: Interest charges paid on “Deferred credit terms” to the supplier of the plant (not a 
qualifying asset) of Rs.4,00,000 and operating losses before commercial production amounting to 
Rs.8,00,000 are not regarded as directly attributable costs and thus  cannot be capitalised. They 
should be written off to the Statement of Profit and Loss  in the period they are incurred. 

 

QUESTION 105 (RTP MAY 19) 

Rau Ltd. purchased a plant for US$ 1,00,000 on 01st  February 2016, payable after  three 
months. Company entered into a forward contract for three months @ Rs.49.15 per dollar. 

Exchange rate per dollar on 01st Feb. was Rs.48.85. How will you recognise the profit or loss on 
forward contract in the books of Rau Ltd.? 
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ANSWER: 

Forward Rate   Rs.49.15  

Less: Spot Rate  (Rs.48.85) Premium 

on Contract    Rs.0.30 Contract 

Amount US$ 1,00,000  

Total Loss (1,00,000x0.30)  Rs.30,000 Contract 

period 3months 

Two falling the year 2016-17; therefore loss to be recognised (30,000/3) x 2 = Rs.20,000. Rest 
Rs.10,000 will be recognised in the following year. 

 

QUESTION 106 (RTP MAY 19) 

Viva Ltd. received a specific grant of Rs.30 lakhs for acquiring the plant of Rs.150 lakhs during 
2014- 15 having useful life of 10 years. The grant received was credited to deferred income in the 
balance sheet and was not deducted from the cost of plant. During 2017-18, due to non-
compliance of conditions laid down for the grant, the  company had to refund the whole grant to 
the Government. Balance in the deferred income on that date was Rs.21 lakhs and written down 
value of plant was Rs.105 lakhs. What should be the treatment of the refund of the grant and the 
effect on cost of the fixed asset and the amount of depreciation to be charged during the year 
2017-18 in profit and loss account? AS 13 Accounting for Investments. 
ANSWER: 

As per AS-12, ‘Accounting for Government Grants’, “the amount refundable in respect of a grant 

related to specific fixed asset should be recorded by reducing the deferred income balance. To 

the extent the amount refundable exceeds any such deferred credit, the amount should be 
charged to profit and loss statement. 

In this case the grant refunded is Rs.30 lakhs and balance in deferred income is Rs.21 lakhs, Rs.9 
lakhs shall be charged to the profit and loss account for the year 2017-18. There will be no effect on 
the cost of the fixed asset and depreciation charged will be on the same basis as charged in the 
earlier years. 
 

QUESTION 107 (RTP MAY 19) 

Paridhi Electronics Ltd. has current investment (X Ltd.’s shares) purchased for Rs.5 lakhs, which 
the company want to reclassify as long term investment on 31.3.2018. The market value of 
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these investments as on date of Balance Sheet was Rs.2.5 lakhs. How will you deal with this as 
on 31.3.18 with reference to AS-13? 

ANSWER; 

As per AS 13 ‘Accounting for Investments’, where investments are reclassified from current to 

long-term, transfers are made at the lower of cost or fair value at the date  of transfer. 

In the given case, the market value of the investment (X Ltd. shares) is Rs.2.50 lakhs, which is 
lower than its cost i.e. Rs.5 lakhs. Therefore, the transfer to long term investments should be 
made at cost of Rs.2.50 lakhs. The loss of Rs.2.50 lakhs should be charged to profit and loss 
account. 

 

QUESTION 108 (RTP MAY 19) 

Zen Bridge Construction Limited obtained a loan of Rs.64 crores to be utilized as under: 

 

(i) Construction of Hill link road in Kedarnath Rs.50 crores 

(ii) Purchase of Equipment and Machineries Rs.6 crores 

(iii) Working Capital Rs.4 crores 

(iv) Purchase of Vehicles Rs.1crore 

(v) Advances for tools/cranes etc. Rs.1crore 

(vi) Purchase of Technical Know how Rs.2 crores 

(vii) Total Interest charged by the Bank for the 
year ending 31st March, 2018 

Rs.1.6 
crores 

Show the treatment of Interest according to Accounting Standard by Zen Bridge Construction 

Limited. 

ANSWER: 

According to AS 16 ‘Borrowing costs’, qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily  takes 

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. As per the standard, borrowing costs 

that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
should be capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. 

Otherborrowingcostsshouldberecognizedasanexpenseintheperiodinwhich they are incurred. 

Capitalization of borrowing costs is also not suspended when a temporary delay is a necessary part 
of the process of getting an asset ready for its intended use or sale. 

The treatment of interest by Zen Bridge Construction Ltd. can be shown as: 
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 Qualifying 
Asset 

Interest to 
be 
capitalized 
Rs. In 
crores 

Interest to 
be charged 
to Profit & 
Loss A/c 
Rs.in crores 

 

Construction of hill road* 

Purchase of equipment and 
machineries 

Working capital Purchase of 

vehicles 

Advance for tools, cranes etc. 

Purchase of technical know-
how 

Total 

Yes 

 
No 

No 

No 

 
No 

No 

1.2
5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 1.2

5 

 

 
0.15 

0.10 

0.025 

 
0.025 

 

0.0

50.

35 

1.6/64 x50 

 
1.6/64 x6 

1.6/64 x4 

1.6/64 x1 

 
1.6/64 x1 

 
1.6/64 x2 

*Note: It is assumed that construction of hill road will normally take more than a year (substantial 

period of time), hence considered as qualifying asset. 

 

QUESTION 109 (RTP NOVEMBER 19) 

Hello Ltd. purchased goods at the cost of Rs.20 lakhs in October. Till the end of the financial year, 

75% of the stocks were sold. The Company wants to disclose closing stock at Rs.5 lakhs. The 

expected sale value is Rs.5.5 lakhs and a commission at 10%  on sale is payable to the agent. You 

are required to ascertain the  value  of closing stock? 

ANSWER: 

As per para 5 of AS 2 “Valuation of Inventories”, the  inventories  are  to  be valued  at lower of cost 

or net realizable value. 

In this case, the cost of inventory is Rs.5 lakhs. The net  realizable  value  is  Rs.4.95 lakhs (Rs.5.5 
lakhs less cost to make the sale @ 10% of Rs.5.5 lakhs). So, the closing stock should be valued at 
Rs.4.95lakhs. 

 

 

QUESTION 110 (RTP NOVEMBER 19) 

Shrishti  Ltd. contracted with  a supplier to  purchase machinery which is to  be installed in its 
Department A in three months' time. Special foundations were required for the machinery which 

were to be prepared within this supply lead time. The cost of the site preparation and laying 

foundations were Rs.1,41,870. These activities were supervised by a technician during the entire 
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period, who is employed for this purpose of Rs.45,000 per month. The technician's services were 

given by Department B to Department A, which billed the services at Rs.49,500 per month after 
adding 10% profit margin. 

The machine was purchased at Rs.1,58,34,000 inclusive of IGST @ 12% for  which input credit is 

available to Shrishti Ltd. Rs.55,770 transportation  charges were incurred to bring the machine to 

the factory site. An Architect was appointed at a fee of  Rs.30,000 to supervise machinery 

installation at the factory site. 

Ascertain the amount at which the Machinery should be capitalized under AS 10 considering that 

IGST credit is availed by the  Shristhi  Limited.  Internally  booked profits should be eliminated in 

arriving at the cost of machine. 

 

ANSWER: 

Calculation of Cost of Fixed Asset (i.e. Machinery) 

Particulars  Rs. 

Purchase Price Given (Rs.158,34,000 x 
100/112) 

1,41,37,500 

Add: Site Preparation 
Cost 

Given 1,41,870 

 Technician’s Salary Specific/Attributable 
overheads for 3 months (See 
Note) (45,000x3) 

1,35,000 

 Initial Delivery 
Cost 

Transportation 55,770 

 Professional Fees 
for Installation 

Architect’s Fees 30,000 

Total Cost of Asset  1,45,00,140 

 

QUESTION 111 (RTP NOVEMBER 19) 

Trade receivables as on 31.3.2019 in the books of XYZ Ltd. include an amount receivable from 
Umesh Rs.5,00,000 recorded at the prevailing exchange rate on the date of sales, i.e. at US $ 1= 

Rs.58.50. US $ 1 = Rs.61.20 on31.3.2019. 

Explain briefly the accounting treatment needed in this case as per AS 11 as on 31.3.2019. 

ANSWER: 

As per AS 11 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, exchange differences arising on 

the settlement of monetary items or on reporting an enterprise’s monetary items at rates different 

from those at which they  were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous 

financial statements, should be recognized as income or as expenses in the period in which they 

arise. 
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Accordingly, exchange difference on trade receivables amounting Rs.23,076 {Rs.5,23,076(US $ 8547 x 
Rs.61.20) less Rs.5,00,000}  should be charged to profit & Loss account. 

 

 

QUESTION 112 (RTP NOVEMBER 19) 

Power Track Ltd. purchased a plant for US$  50,000  on  31st  October,  2018 payable after 6 

months. The company entered into a forward contract for 6 months @Rs.64.25 per Dollar. On 

31stOctober, 2018, the exchange rate wasRs.61.50 per Dollar. 

You are required to recognise the profit  or loss on forward  contract in the books  of the 

company for the year ended 31st March,2019. 

ANSWER: 

Calculation of profit or loss to be recognized in the books of Power Track Limited 

 Rs. 

Forward contract rate 64.25 

Less: Spot rate (61.50) 

Loss on forward contract 2.75 

Forward Contract Amount $ 50,000 

Total loss on entering into forward contract = ($ 50,000 × 
Rs.2.75) 

Rs.1,37,500 

Contract period 6 months 

Loss for the period 1st November, 2018 to  31st  March, 
2019 i.e. 5 months falling in the year2018-2019 

5 months 

Hence, Loss for 5 months will be Rs.1,37,500  Rs.1,14,583 

Thus, the loss amounting to Rs.1,14,583 for the period is to be recognized in the year ended 31st 

March, 2019. 

 

 

QUESTION 113 (RTP NOVEMBER 19) 

Samrat Limited has set up its business  in a  designated  backward area  which entitles the 

company for subsidy of 25% of the total investment  from  Government of  India. The company 
has invested Rs.80 crores in the eligible investments. The company is eligible for the subsidy and 

has received Rs.20 crores from the government in February 2019. The company wants to 

recognize the  said subsidy  as its  income to  improve the bottom line of the company. 

Do you approve the action of the company in accordance with the Accounting Standard? 
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ANSWER: 

As  per AS  12 “Accounting for Government Grants”,  where the government  grants are  in the 

nature of promoters’ contribution, i.e., they are given with reference to the total investment in an 

undertaking or by way of contribution towards its total  capital outlay (for example, Central 
Investment Subsidy Scheme) and no repayment is ordinarily expected in respect thereof, the grants 

are treated as capital reserve which can be neither distributed as dividend nor considered as 

deferred income. 

The subsidy received by Samrat Ltd. for setting up its business in a designated backward area will 

be treated as grant by the government in the nature of promoter’s contribution as the grant is given 

with reference to the total investment  in  an undertaking i.e. subsidy is 25% of the eligible 

investment and also no repayment is apparently expected in respect thereof. Since the subsidy 

received is neither in relation  to  specific fixed  assets nor in relation to revenue. Thus, the 

company cannot recognize the said subsidy as income in its financial statements in the given case. 

It should be recognized  as  capital  reserve which can be neither distributed as dividend nor 

considered as deferred income. 

 

QUESTION 114 (RTP NOVEMBER 19) 

Z Bank has classified  its total  investment  on 31-3-2018 into three categories (a) held   to 
maturity (b) available for sale (c) held for trading as per the RBI Guidelines. ‘Held to maturity’ 
investments are  carried  at acquisition  cost less amortized amount. ‘Available for sale’ 
investments are  carried at  marked to  market.    ‘Held for trading’ investments are valued  at 
weekly  intervals  at market rates.  Net depreciation, if any, is charged to revenue and net 
appreciation, if any, is ignored. 

You are required to  comment whether the  policy of the  bank is in  accordance with  AS13? 

ANSWER: 

As  per AS  13 ‘Accounting for Investments’,  the accounting standard is  not applicable  to Bank, 

Insurance Company, Mutual Funds. In this case Z Bank is  a bank, therefore, AS 13 does not apply to 

it. For banks, the RBI has issued separate guidelines for classification and valuation of its 

investment and Z  Bank  should comply with  those RBI Guidelines/Norms. Therefore, though Z 

Bank has not followed  the  provisions  of AS 13, yet it would not be said as non-compliance since, it  

is  complying with  the norms stipulated by the RBI. 

 

QUESTION 115 (RTP NOVEMBER 19) 

In May, 2018, Capacity Ltd. took a bank loan to  be  used  specifically  for  the  construction of a 

new factory building. The construction was completed in January, 2019 and the building was put 

to its use immediately thereafter. Interest on the actual amount used for construction of the 

tel:8334866117
http://www.caraviagarwal.com/
https://youtube.com/MissionCAwithCARaviAgarwal


 

 

1
0

8
 

building till its completion was Rs.18  lakhs, whereas  the  total  interest  payable  to  the  bank  

on  the  loan  for   the  period  till   31st March, 2019 amounted to Rs.25lakhs. Can Rs.25 lakhs be 

treated as part of the cost of factory building and thus be capitalized on the plea that the loan 

was specifically taken for the construction of factory building? Explain the treatment in line with 

the provisions of AS 16. 

ANSWER: 

AS 16 clearly states that capitalization of borrowing costs should cease  when substantially all the 
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are completed. Therefore, 
interest on the amount that has been used for the construction of the building up to the date of 
completion (January, 2019)  i.e.  Rs.18 lakhs alone can be capitalized. It cannot be extended to 
Rs.25lakhs. 
 

QUESTION 116 (RTP MAY 20) 

ABC Ltd. was making provision for non-moving inventories based on  no issues for  the last 12 

months up to31.3.2019. 

The company wants to provide during the year ending 31.3.2020 based on technical evaluation: 
 

Total value of inventory ₹ 100 lakhs 

Provision required based on 12 months issue ₹ 3.5 lakhs 

Provision required based on technical 
evaluation 

₹ 2.5 lakhs 

Does this amount to change in Accounting Policy? Can the company change the method of 

provision? 

ANSWER: 

The decision of making provision for non-moving inventories on the basis of  technical evaluation 

does not amount to change in accounting  policy. Accounting policy of a company may require 
that provision for non-moving inventories should be made. The method of estimating the amount 

of provision may be changed in case a more prudent estimate can be made. In the given case, 

considering the total value of inventory, the change in the amount of required provision of non-
moving inventory from ₹ 3.5 lakhs to ₹ 2.5 lakhs is  also not material. The disclosure can be made 

for such change in the following 

linesbywayofnotestotheaccountsintheannualaccountsofABCLtd.fortheyear 2019-20: 

“The company has provided for non-moving inventories on the basis of technical evaluation 

unlike preceding years. Had the same method been followed as in the previous year, the profit for 

the year and the corresponding effect on the year end net assets would have been lower by ₹ 
1lakh.” 
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QUESTION 117 (RTP MAY 20) 

State whether the following statements are 'True' or 'False’. Also give reason for your answer. 

1. Certain fundamental accounting assumptions underline the preparation and presentation 

of financial statements. They are usually specifically stated because their acceptance and 

use are not assumed. 

2. If fundamental accounting assumptions are not followed in presentation and preparation of 

financial statements, a specific disclosure is not required. 

3. All significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation and presentation  of financial 

statements should form part of the financial statements. 

4. Any change in an accounting policy, which has a material effect should be disclosed. Where 

the amount by which any item in the financial statements is affected by such change is not 

ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact need not to be indicated. 

ANSWER: 

1.  False; As per AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”, certain fundamental accounting 

assumptions underlie the preparation and presentation of financial statements. They are 
usually not specifically stated because their acceptance and use are assumed. Disclosure is 

necessary if they are not followed. 

2. False; As per AS 1, if the fundamental accounting assumptions, viz. Going Concern, 

Consistency and Accrual are followed in financial statements, specific disclosure is not 

required. If a fundamental accounting assumption is not followed, the fact should be 
disclosed. 

3. True; To ensure proper understanding of financial statements, it is necessary that all 

significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation and presentation of financial 

statements should be disclosed. The disclosure of the significant accounting policies  as such 
should form part  of the financial statements and they should be disclosed in one place. 

4. False; Any change in the accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period 

or which is reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods should be disclosed. 

Where such amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the facts should be indicated. 

 

QUESTION 118 (RTP MAY 20) 

Particulars Kg. ₹ 

Opening Inventory: Finished Goods 1,000 25,000 
 Raw Materials 1,100 11,000 

Purchases  10,000 1,00,000 
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Labour   76,500 

Overheads (Fixed)   75,000 

Sales  10,000 2,80,000 

Closing Inventory: Raw Materials 900  

 Finished Goods 1200  

The expected production for the year was 15,000 kg of the finished product. Due to  fall in 
market demand the sales price for the finished goods was Rs. 20 per kg and the replacement 
cost for the raw material was Rs. 9.50 per kg on the closing day. You are required to calculate 
the closing inventory as on that date. 

ANSWER: 

Calculation of cost for closing inventory 

 

Particulars Rs. 

Cost of Purchase (10,200 x 10) 1,02,000 

Direct Labour 76,500 

Fixed Overhead 75,000 x 10,200 
15,0
00 

51,000 

Cost of Production 2,29,500 

Cost of closing inventory per unit (2,29,500/10,200) Rs. 22.50 

Net Realisable Value per unit Rs. 20.00 

Since net realisable value is less than cost, closing inventory will be valued at Rs. 20. 

As NRV of the finished goods is less than its cost, relevant raw materials will be valued at 

replacement cost i.e. Rs. 9.50. 

Therefore, value of closing inventory: Finished Goods(1,200 x 20) Rs.24,000 

Raw Materials (900x9.50) Rs. 8,550 
Rs.32,550 

 

QUESTION 119 (RTP MAY 20) 

Classify the following activities as (1) Operating Activities, (2) Investing Activities, (3) Financing 

Activities (4) Cash Equivalents. 

a. Proceeds from long-term borrowings. 

b. Proceeds from Trade receivables. 

c. Trading Commission received. 
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d. Redemption of Preference Shares. 

e. Proceeds from sale of investment 

f. Interim Dividend paid on equity shares. 

g. Interest received on debentures held as investment. 

h. Dividend received on shares held as investments. 

i. Rent received on property held as investment. 

j. Dividend paid on Preference shares. 

k. Marketable Securities 

ANSWER: 

Operating Activities:  b, c.  

Investing Activities: e, g, h, i.  

Financing Activities: a, d, f, j.  

Cash Equivalent: k. 

 

QUESTION 120 (RTP MAY 20) 

Entity A has a policy of not providing for depreciation on PPE capitalized in the year  until the 

following year, but provides for a full year's depreciation in the year of disposal of an asset. Is 
this acceptable? 

ANSWER: 

The depreciable amount of a tangible fixed asset should be allocated on a systematic basis over 

its useful life. The depreciation method should reflect the pattern in which the asset's future 
economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the entity. Useful life means the period over 

which the asset is expected to be available for use by the entity. Depreciation should commence 

as soon as the asset is acquired and is available for use. Thus, the policy of Entity A is not 

acceptable. 

 

QUESTION 121 (RTP MAY 20) 

Entity A purchased an asset on 1st January 2016 for Rs. 1,00,000 and the asset had  an 
estimated useful life of 10 years and a residual value of nil. On 1st January 2020, the directors 

review the estimated life and decide that the asset will probably be useful for a further 4 years. 
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Calculate the amount of depreciation for each year, if company charges depreciation on 

Straight Line basis. 

ANSWER: 

The entity has charged depreciation using the straight-line method at Rs. 10,000 per annum i.e 
(1,00,000/10 years). On 1st January 2020, the asset's net book value is [1,00,000 – (10,000 x 4)] = 
Rs.60,000. 

The remaining useful life is 4 years. The company should amend the annual provision for 
depreciation to charge the unamortized cost over the revised remaining life of four years. 
Consequently, it should charge depreciation for the next 4 years at Rs. 15,000 per annum i.e. 

(60,000 / 4 years). Depreciation is recognized even if the Fair value of the Asset exceeds its 
Carrying Amount. Repair and maintenance of an asset do not negate the need to depreciate it. 

 

(RTP MAY 20) 

The following items are given to you: 

ITEMS 

(1) Costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting  the  net 
proceeds from selling any items produced while bringing the asset to that location and 

condition (such as samples produced when testing equipment); 

(2) Costs of conducting business in a new location or with a new class of customer (including 

costs of staff training); 

(3) Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary 

for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

(4) Costs of opening a new facility or business, such as, inauguration costs; 

(5) Purchase price, including import duties and non–refundable purchase taxes, after 
deducting trade discounts and rebates. 

With reference to AS 10 “Property, Plant and Equipment”, classify the above items under the 
following heads: 

HEADS 

(i) Purchase Price of PPE 

(ii) Directly attributable cost of PPE or 

(iii) Cost not included in determining the carrying amount of an item of PPE. 
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ANSWER: 

(1) Costs of testing  whether the asset is  functioning properly, after  deducting  the net proceeds 

from selling any items produced while bringing the asset to that location and condition (such 
as samples produced when testing equipment) will be classified as “Directly attributable cost 

of PPE”. 

(2) Costs of conducting business in a new location or with a new class of customer (including 

costs of staff training) will be classified under head (iii)as it will not be included in 
determining the carrying amount of an item of PPE. 

 

(3) Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management will be included in 

determination of Purchase Price of PPE 

(4) Costs of opening a new facility or business, such as, inauguration costs will be classified under 
head (iii) as it will not be included in determining the carrying amount of an item of PPE. 

(5) Purchase price, including import duties and non–refundable purchase taxes, after deducting 

trade discounts and rebates will be included in determination of Purchase Price of PPE. 

 

QUESTION 122 (RTP MAY 20) 

AXE Limited purchased fixed assets costing $ 5,00,000 on  1st Jan. 2018 from    an American 

company M/s M&M Limited. The amount was payable after 6 months. The company entered 
into a forward contract on 1st January 2018 for five months @ Rs.62.50 per dollar. The 

exchange rate per dollar was as follows : 

On 1st  January, 2018         Rs. 60.75 per dollar 

On 31st  March, 2018         Rs. 63.00 per dollar 

You are required to state how the profit or loss on forward contract would be recognized in the 

books of AXE Limited for the year ending 2017-18, as per the provisions of AS 11. 

ANSWER: 

As per AS 11 “The  Effects  of  Changes  in  Foreign  Exchange  Rates”,  an enterprise may enter 

into a forward exchange contract to  establish the amount of the reporting currency required, the 

premium or discount arising at the inception of such a forward exchange contract should be 
amortized as expenses or income over the life of the contract. 
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Forward Rate                                                                                   Rs.62.50 

Less: Spot Rate (Rs.60.75) 

Premium on Contract Rs.1.75 

Contract Amount US$ 5,00,000 

Total Loss (5,00,000 x 1.75) Rs. 8,75,000 

Contract period 5 months 

3 months falling in the year 2017-18; therefore loss to be recognized in 2017-18 (8,75,000/5) x 3 = 
Rs. 5,25,000. Rest Rs. 3,50,000 will be recognized in the following year 2018-19. 

 

QUESTION 123 (RTP MAY 20) 

Assets and liabilities and income and expenditure items in respect of integral  foreign operations 

are translated into Indian rupees at the prevailing rate of exchange at the end of the year. The 
resultant exchange differences in the case of profit, is carried to other Liabilities Account and the 

Loss, if any, is charged to revenue. You are required to comment in line with AS 11 . 

ANSWER: 

Financial statements of an integral foreign operation (for example, dependent foreign branches) 

should be translated using the principles and procedures described in paragraphs 8 to 16 of AS 11 
(Revised 2003).  The individual items  in the financial statements of a foreign operation are 

translated as if all its transactions had been entered into by the reporting enterprise itself. 
Individual items in the financial statements of the foreign operation are translated at the actual 

rate on the date of transaction. The foreign currency monetary i tems (for example cash, 

receivables, payables) should be reported using the closing rate at each balance sheet date. Non-
monetary items (for example, fixed assets, inventories, investments in equity shares) which are 

carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency should be reported using the 

exchange date at the date of transaction. Thus the cost and depreciation of the tangible fixed 
assets is translated using the exchange rate at the date of purchase of the asset if asset is carried 

at cost. If the fixed asset is carried at fair value, translation should be done using the rate existed 

on the date of the valuation. The cost of inventories is translated at the exchange rates that 
existed when the cost of inventory was incurred and realizable value is translated applying 

exchange rate when realizable value is determined which is generally closing rate. Exchange 
difference arising on the translation of  the  financial statements of integral foreign operation 

should be charged to profit and loss account. 

Thus, the treatment by the management of translating all assets and liabilities; income and 

expenditure items in respect of foreign branches at the prevailing rate at the year end and also the 

treatment of resultant exchange difference is not in consonance with AS 11 (Revised2003). 
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QUESTION 124 (RTP MAY 20) 

How would you treat the following in the accounts in accordance with AS 12 'Government 

Grants'? 

(i) Rs. 35 Lakhs received from the Local Authority for providing Medical facilities to the 
employees. 

(ii) Rs. 100 Lakhs received as Subsidy from the Central Government for setting up a unit in a 
notified backward area. 

(iii) Rs. 10 Lakhs Grant received from the Central Government on installation of anti- pollution 
equipment. 

ANSWER: 

(i) Rs. 35 lakhs received from the local authority for providing medical facilities to the 

employees is a grant received in the nature of revenue grant. Such grants are generally 
presented as a credit in the profit and loss statement, either separately or under a general 

heading such as ‘Other Income’. Alternatively, Rs. 35 lakhs  may be deducted in reporting the 

related expense i.e. employee benefit expenses. 

(ii) As per AS 12 ‘Accounting for Government Grants’, where the government grants are in the 

nature of promoters’ contribution, i.e. they are given with reference to the total investment 

in an undertaking or by way of contribution towards its total capital outlay and no repayment 

is ordinarily expected in respect thereof, the  grants are treated as capital reserve which can 
be neither distributed as dividend nor considered as deferred income. 

In the given case, the subsidy received from the Central Government for setting up a unit in 

notified backward area is neither in relation to specific fixed asset  nor in relation to revenue. 

Thus, amount of Rs. 100 lakhs should be credited to capital reserve. 

(iii) Rs. 10 lakhs grant received for installation anti-pollution equipment is a grant related to 
specific fixed asset. Two methods of presentation in financial statements of grants related to 

specific fixed assets are regarded as acceptable alternatives. Under first method, the grant is 
shown as a deduction from the gross value of the asset concerned in arriving at its book 

value.  The grant is  thus recognised in the profit and loss statement over the useful life of a 

depreciable asset by way of a reduced depreciation charge. Under the second method, grants 
related to depreciable assets are treated as deferred income which is recognised in the profit 

and loss statement on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset. 

Thus, Rs. 10 lakhs may either be deducted from the cost of equipment or treated as deferred 
income to be recognized on a systematic basis in profit & Loss A/c over the useful life of 

equipment. 
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QUESTION 125 (RTP MAY 20) 

Omega Equity Investments Ltd., wants to  re-classify its investments in accordance  with AS 13. 
State the values, at which the investments have to be reclassified in the following cases: 

(i) Long term investments in Company A, costing Rs. 8.5 lakhs are to be re-classified as 
current. The company had reduced the value of these investments to Rs. 6.5 lakhs to 
recognize a permanent decline in value. The fair value on date of transfer is Rs. 6.8lakhs. 

(ii) Current investment in Company C, costing Rs. 10 lakhs are to be re-classified as long term as 

the company wants to retain them. The market value on date of transfer is Rs. 12lakhs. 

(iii) Certain long term investments no longer considered for holding purposes, to be reclassified 

as current investments. The original cost of these investments was 
Rs. 18 lakhs  but had been written down to Rs. 12 lakhs  to recognize permanent decline as 

per AS 13. 

ANSWER: 

As per AS 13 ‘Accounting for Investments’, where long-term investments are reclassified as 

current investments, transfers are made at the lower of cost and carrying amount at the date of 
transfer. And where investments are reclassified from current to long term, transfers are made at 

lower of cost and fair value on the date of transfer.Accordingly,there-
classificationwillbedoneonthefollowingbasis: 

(i) In this case, carrying amount of investment on the date of transfer is less than  the cost; 
hence this re-classified current investment should be carried at Rs. 6.5 lakhs in the books. 

(ii) In this case, reclassification of current investment into long-term investments will be made at 

Rs. 10 lakhs as cost is less than its market value of Rs.12 lakhs. 

(iii) In this case, the book value of the investment is Rs. 12 lakhs, which is lower than its cost i.e. 
Rs. 18 lakhs. Here, the transfer should be at carrying amount and hence this re-classified 
current investment should be carried at Rs. 12lakhs. 

 

QUESTION 126 (RTP MAY 20) 

Govind Ltd. issued 12% secured debentures of Rs. 100 Lakhs on 01.04.2018, to be utilized as 
under: 

 

Particulars Amount (Rs. in 
lakhs) 

Construction of factory building 40 

Purchase of Machinery 35 

Working Capital 25 
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In March 2019, construction of the factory building was completed and machinery was installed 

and ready for its intended use. Total interest on debentures for the financial year ended 
31.03.2019 was Rs. 12,00,000. During the year 2018-19, the company had invested idle fund out 

of money raised from debentures in banks' fixed deposit and had earned an interest of 

Rs.3,00,000. 

You are required to show the treatment of interest under Accounting Standard 16 and also 

explain nature of assets. 

ANSWER: 

According to AS 16 “Borrowing Costs”, borrowing costs that are directly attributable   to the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset should be capitalised as part of the 

cost of that  asset. The amount of  borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation should be 

determined in accordance with this Standard. Other borrowing costs should be recognised as an 
expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

It also states that to the extent that funds are borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining a 

qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation on that asset should be 
determined as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less any 

income on the temporary investment of those borrowings. 

Thus, eligible borrowing cost 

= Rs. 12,00,000 – Rs. 3,00,000 

= Rs. 9,00,000 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Nature

 o
f assets 

Interest to 
be 
capitalized 
(Rs.) 

Interest to 

be charged to 
Profit & Loss 

Account 

(Rs.) 

i Construction Qualifying 9,00,000x40/100 NIL 
 Of factory 

building 

Asset = Rs. 3,60,000  

ii Purchase of Not a 
Qualifying 

NIL 9,00,000x35/10
0 

 Machinery Asset  = Rs. 3,15,000 

iii Working Not a 
Qualifying 

NIL 9,00,000x25/10
0 

 Capital Asset   = Rs. 2,25,000 
 Total  Rs. 3,60,000 Rs. 5,40,000 
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QUESTION 127 (RTP NOVEMBER 20) 

What are the three fundamental accounting assumptions recognized by Accounting Standard 

(AS) 1? Briefly describe each one of them. 

ANSWER: 

Accounting Standard (AS) 1 recognizes three fundamental accounting assumptions. These are as 
follows: 

(i) Going Concern: The financial statements are normally prepared on the assumption that an 

enterprise will continue its operations in the foreseeable future and neither there is 
intention, nor there is need to materially curtail the scale of operations. 

(ii) Consistency: The principle of consistency refers to the practice of using same accounting 

policies for similar transactions in all accounting periods unless the change is required (i) by 
a statute, (ii) by an accounting standard or (iii) for more appropriate presentation of 

financial statements. 

(iii) Accrual basis of accounting: Under this basis of accounting, transactions are recognised as 

soon as they occur, whether or not cash or cash equivalent is actually received or paid. 

 

QUESTION 128 (RTP NOVEMBER 20) 

A Limited is engaged in manufacturing of Chemical Y for which Raw Material X is required. The 

company  provides  you  following  information  for  the  year  ended  31st March,2020. 

 Rs. Per unit 

Raw Material X  

Cost price 400 

Freight Inward 40 

Replacement cost 320 

Chemical Y  

Material consumed 440 

Direct Labour 120 

Variable Overheads 80 

Additional Information: 

(i) Total fixed overhead for the year was Rs.4,00,000 on normal capacity of 
25,000 units. 

(ii) Closing balance of Raw Material X was 1,000 units and Chemical Y was 2,400 

units. 

tel:8334866117
http://www.caraviagarwal.com/
https://youtube.com/MissionCAwithCARaviAgarwal


 

 

1
1

9
 

You are required to calculate the total value of closing stock of Raw Material X and Chemical Y 
according to AS 2, when Net realizable value of Chemical Y is Rs.600 per unit. 

ANSWER: 

Net Realizable Value of the Chemical Y (Finished Goods) is Rs.600 per unit which is  less than its 
cost Rs.656 per unit. Hence, Raw Material is to be valued at replacement cost and Finished Goods 
are to be valued at NRV since NRV is less than the cost. 

Value of Closing Stock: 

 

 Qty. Rate (Rs.) Amount 
(Rs.) 

Raw Material X 1,000 320 3,20,000 

Finished Goods Y 2,400 600 14,40,000 

Total Value of Closing Stock   17,60,000 

Working Note: 

Statement showing cost calculation of Raw material X and Chemical Y 

 

Raw Material X Rs. 

Cost Price 400 

Add: Freight Inward 40 

Cost 440 

Chemical Y Rs. 

Materials consumed 440 

Direct Labour 120 

Variable overheads 80 
Fixed overheads (Rs.4,00,000/25,000 units) 16 

Cost 656 

 

QUESTION 129 (RTP NOVEMBER 20) 

Omega Ltd. contracted with a supplier to purchase machinery which is to be installed in its one 
department in three months' time. Special foundations were required for the machinery which 
were to be prepared within this  supply lead time. The cost of the site preparation and laying 
foundations were Rs.1,40,000. These activities were supervised by a technician during the 
entire period, who is employed for this purpose at Rs.45,000 per month. 

The machine was purchased at Rs.1,58,00,000 and Rs.50,000 transportation charges were incurred 
to bring the machine to the factory site. An Architect was appointed at a fee of Rs.30,000 to 
supervise machinery installation at the factory site. 
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You are required to ascertain the amount at which the Machinery should be capitalized under  

AS 10. 

 

ANSWER: 

Calculation of Cost of Machinery 

 

Particulars  Rs. 

Purchase Price Given 1,58,00,000 

Add: Site Preparation 
Cost 

Given 1,40,000 

 Technician’s Salary Specific/Attributable overheads 
for 3 months (45,000 x3) 

1,35,000 

 Initial Delivery Cost Transportation 50,000 
 Professional Fees for 

Installation 
Architect’s Fees 30,000 

Total Cost of Asset  1,61,55,000 

 

 

QUESTION 130 (RTP NOVEMBER 20) 

How would you treat the following in the accounts in accordance with AS 12 'Government 

Grants'? 

(i) Rs.35 Lakhs received from the Local Authority for providing Medical facilities to the 
employees. 

(ii) Rs.100 Lakhs received as Subsidy from the Central Government for setting up a unit in 
notified backward area. 

ANSWER: 

(i) Rs.35 lakhs received from the local authority for providing medical facilities to the 
employees is a grant received in the nature of revenue grant. Such grants are generally 
presented as a credit in the profit and loss statement, either separately or under a general 
heading such as ‘Other Income’. Alternatively, Rs.35 lakhs may be deducted in reporting 
the related expense i.e. employee benefit expenses. 

 

(ii) As per AS 12 ‘Accounting for Government Grants’, where the government grants are in the 
nature of promoters’ contribution, i.e. they are given with reference to the total 
investment in an undertaking or by way of contribution towards its total capital outlay and 
no repayment is ordinarily expected in respect thereof, the grants are treated as capital 
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reserve which can be neither distributed as dividend nor considered as deferred income.  
In  the  given   case,   the   subsidy  received from the Central Government for setting up a 
unit in notified backward area is neither in relation to specific fixed asset nor in relation to 
revenue. Thus, amount of Rs.100 lakhs should be credited to capital reserve. 

 

QUESTION 131 (RTP NOVEMBER 20) 

A Ltd. on 1-1-2020 had made an investment of Rs.600 lakhs in the equity shares of B  Ltd. of 
which 50% is made in the long term category and the rest as temporary investment. The 
realizable value of all such investment on 31-3-2020 became Rs.200 lakhs as B Ltd. lost a case of 
copyright. How will you recognize the reduction in the value of the investment in the  financial 
statements for the year ended on 31-3-2020 as per AS 13 considering this down fall in the value 
of shares as non-temporary? 

ANSWER: 

A limited invested Rs.600 lakhs in the equity shares of B Ltd. Out of the same, the company intends 
to hold 50% shares for long term period i.e. Rs.300 lakhs and remaining as temporary (current) 
investment i.e. Rs.300 lakhs. Irrespective of the fact that 
investmenthasbeenheldbyALimitedonlyfor3months(from1.1.2020to31.3.2020), AS 13 lays emphasis 
on intention of the  investor to classify the investment as current  or long term even though the 
long-term investment maybe readily marketable. 

In the given situation, the realizable value of all such investments on 31.3.2020 became Rs.200 lakhs 
i.e. Rs.100 lakhs in respect of current investment and Rs.100 lakhs in respect of long-term 
investment. 

As per AS 13, ‘Accounting for Investment’, the carrying amount for current investments is the lower 
of cost and fair value. In respect of current investments for which an active market exists, market 
value generally provides the best evidence of fair value. 

Accordingly, the carrying value of investment held as temporary investment should be shown at 
realizable value i.e. at Rs.100 lakhs. The reduction of Rs.200 lakhs in the carrying value of current 
investment will be charged in the profit and loss account. 

Standard further states that long-term investments are usually carried at cost. However, when 

there is a decline, other than temporary, in the value of long-term investment, the carrying amount 

is reduced to recognize the decline. 

Here, B Limited has lost a case of copyright which drastically reduced the realizable value of its 

shares to one third which is quiet a substantial figure. Losing the case of copyright may affect the 

business and the performance of the company in long run. Accordingly, it will be appropriate to 
reduce the carrying amount of long-term investment by Rs.200 lakhs and show the investments at 

Rs.100 lakhs as the downfall in the value of shares is not temporary. The reduction of Rs.200 lakhs 

in the carrying value of long-term investment will be charged to the profit and loss account. 
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QUESTION 132 (RTP NOVEMBER 20) 

Vital Limited borrowed an amount of Rs.150 crores on 1.4.2019 for construction of boiler plant 
@ 10% p.a. The plant is expected to be completed in 4 years. Since the weighted average cost of 
capital is 13% p.a., the accountant of Vital Ltd. CapitalizedRs.19.50 crores for the accounting 
period ending on 31.3.2020. Due to surplus fund out of Rs.150 crores, an income of Rs.1.50 
crores was earned and credited to profit and loss account. Comment on the above treatment of 
accountant with reference to relevant accounting standard. 

ANSWER: 

Para 10 of AS 16 ‘Borrowing Costs’ states that to the extent the funds are borrowed specifically 

for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for 

capitalization on that asset should be determined as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that 

borrowing during the period less any income on the temporary investment of those borrowings. 

The capitalization rate should be the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the 
borrowings of the  enterprise that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings 

made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Hence, in the above case, 
treatment of accountant of Vital Ltd. is incorrect. The amount of borrowing costs 

capitalizedforthefinancialyear2019-20shouldbecalculatedasfollows: 

 

Actual interest for 2019-20 (10% of Rs.150 crores) Rs.15.00 
crores 

Less: Income on temporary investment from specific 
borrowings 

 
(Rs.1.50 
crores) 

Borrowing costs to be capitalized during year 2019-2020 Rs.13.50 
crores 

 

 

QUESTION 133 (RTP NOVEMBER 20) 

When capitalization of borrowing cost should cease as per Accounting Standard 16? Explain in 
brief. 

 

ANSWER: 

Capitalization of borrowing costs should cease when substantially all the activities necessary to 

prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.  An asset is normally ready 

for its intended use or sale when its physical construction or production is complete even though 
routine administrative work might still continue. If minor modifications such as the decoration of 

a property to the user’s specification, are all that are outstanding, this indicates that substantially 
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all the activities are complete. When the construction of a qualifying asset is completed in parts 

and a completed part is capable of being used while construction continues for the other parts, 
capitalization of borrowing costs in relation to a part should cease when substantially all the 

activities necessary to prepare that part for its intended use or sale are complete. 

 

QUESTION 134  (MTP AUGUST 18) 

ABCLtd.isinstallinganewplantatitsproductionfacility.Ithasincurredthesecosts: 

Cost of the plant (cost per supplier’s invoice plus 
taxes) 

Rs. 25,00,000 

Initial delivery and handling costs Rs. 2,00,000 

Cost of site preparation Rs. 6,00,000 

Consultants used for advice on the acquisition of the 
plant 

Rs. 7,00,000 

Interest charges paid to supplier of plant for deferred 
credit 

Rs. 2,00,000 

Estimated dismantling costs to be incurred after 7 
years 

Rs. 3,00,000 

Operating losses before commercial production Rs. 4,00,000 

Please advise ABC Ltd. on the costs that can be capitalised in accordance with AS 10 (Revised). 
 

ANSWER: 

According to AS 10 (Revised), the following costs can be capitalized: 

 

Cost of the plant Rs. 25,00,000 

Initial delivery and handling costs Rs. 2,00,000 

Cost of site preparation Rs. 6,00,000 

Consultants’ fees Rs. 7,00,000 

Estimated dismantling costs to be incurred after 7 
years 

Rs. 3,00,000 

 Rs. 43,00,000 

Note: Interest charges paid on “Deferred credit terms” to the supplier of the plant (not a 
qualifying asset)  of  Rs.   2,00,000  and  operating  losses  before  commercial  production  

amounting  to   Rs. 4,00,000 are not regarded as directly attributable costs and thus cannot be 
capitalised. They should be written off to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are 

incurred. 
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QUESTION 135 (MTP AUGUST 18) 
A Limited is engaged in manufacturing of Chemical Y for which Raw Material X is required. The 

company provides you following information for the year ended 31 st March,2017. 

 Rs. Per unit 

Raw Material X  

Cost price 380 

Unloading Charges 20 

Freight Inward 40 

Replacement cost 300 

Chemical Y  

Material consumed 440 

Direct Labour 120 

Variable Overheads 80 

Additional Information: 

(i) Total fixed overhead for the year was Rs. 4,00,000 on normal capacity of 
20,000units. 

(ii) Closing balance of Raw Material X was 1,000 units and Chemical Y was Rs.2,400 
units. 

You are required to calculate the total value of closing stock of Raw Material X and Chemical Y 

according to AS 2, when net realizable value of Chemical Y is Rs. 800 per unit. 

ANSWER: 

When Net Realizable Value of the Chemical Y is Rs. 800 per unit 

NRV is greater than the cost of Finished Goods Y i.e. Rs. 660 (Refer W.N.)  

Hence, Raw Material and Finished Goods are to be valued at cost. 

Value of Closing Stock: 
 

 Qty. Rate (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) 

Raw Material X 1,000 440 4,40,000 

Finished Goods Y 2,400 660 15,84,000 

Total Value of Closing Stock   20,24,000 

 

Working Note: 
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Statement showing cost calculation of Raw material X and Chemical Y 

Raw Material X Rs. 

Cost Price 380 

Add: Freight Inward 40 

Unloading charges 20 

Cost 440 

Chemical Y Rs. 

Materials consumed 440 

Direct Labour 120 

Variable overheads 80 

Fixed overheads (Rs.4,00,000/20,000 units) 20 

Cost 660 

 

 

QUESTION 136 (MTP OCTOBER 18) 

Mohan Ltd. has an existing freehold factory property, which it intends to knock down and 

redevelop. During the redevelopment period the company will move its production facilities to 

another (temporary)site. 

The following incremental costs will be incurred: 

Setup costs of Rs. 5,00,000 to install machinery in the new location. Rent of Rs. 15,00,000. 

Removal costs of Rs. 3,00,000 to transport the machinery from the old location to the 

temporary location. 

Mohan Ltd. wants to seek your guidance as whether these costs can be capitalized into the cost of 

the new building. You are required to advise in line with AS 10 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. 

ANSWER: 

Constructing or acquiring a new asset may result in incremental costs that would have been 
avoided if the asset had not been constructed or acquired. These costs are not be included in the 

cost of the asset if they are not directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location  and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

The costs to be incurred by the company are in the nature of costs of reducing or reorganizing the 
operations of the accompany. These costs do not meet that requirement of AS 10 “Property, Plant 

and Equipment” and cannot, therefore, be capitalized. 
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QUESTION 137 (MTP OCTOBER 18) (MTP APRIL 19) 

Omega Ltd., has a normal wastage of 4% in the production process. During the year 2016-17, 

the Company used 12,000 MT of raw material costing Rs. 150 per MT. At the end of the year 630 
MT of wastage was ascertained in stock. The accountant wants to know how this wastage is to 

be treated in the books. You are required to compute the amount of  normal and abnormal loss 
and treatment thereof  in line with AS 2 “Valuation of inventories”. 

ANSWER: 

As per para AS  2 ‘Valuation of Inventories’, abnormal amounts of wasted materials, labour  and 

other production costs are excluded from cost of inventories and such costs are recognized as 
expenses in the period in which they are incurred. The normal loss will be included in determining 

the cost of inventories (finished goods) at the year end. 

Amount of Normal Loss and Abnormal Loss: 

Material used 12,000 MT @ Rs. 150 = Rs. 18,00,000 

Normal Loss (4% of 12,000 MT) 480MT 

Net quantity of material 11,520MT 

Abnormal Loss in quantity 150 MT (630 MT less 480MT) 

Abnormal Loss Rs. 23,437.50 [150 units @ Rs. 156.25 

(Rs.18,00,000/11,520)] 

Amount of Rs. 23,437.50 will be charged to the Profit and Loss statement. 

 

QUESTION 138 (MTP OCTOBER 18) 

In  the  books  of  M/s  Prashant  Ltd.,  closing  inventory   as   on   31.03.2018  amounts   to Rs. 

1,63,000 (on the basis of FIFO method). 

The company decides to change from FIFO method to weighted average method for ascertaining 
the cost of inventory from the year 2017-18. On the basis of weighted average method, closing 

inventory as on 31.03.2018 amounts to Rs. 1,47,000. Realisable value of the inventory as on 

31.03.2018 amounts to Rs. 1,95,000. 

Discuss disclosure requirement of change in accounting policy as per AS-1. 

ANSWER: 

As per AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”, any change in an accounting  policy  which has a 

material effect should be disclosed in the financial statements. The amount by which  any item in 
the financial statements is affected by such change should also be disclosed to the extent 

ascertainable. Where such amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be 

indicated. Thus Prashant Ltd. should disclose the change in valuation method of inventory and its 
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effect on financial statements. The company may disclose the change in accounting policy in the 

following manner: 

‘The company values its inventory at lower of cost and net realisable value. Since net realisable 
value of all items of inventory in the current year was greater than respective costs, the company 

valued its inventory at cost. In the present year i.e. 2017-18, the company has changed to 
weighted average method, which better reflects the consumption pattern of inventory, for 

ascertaining inventory costs from the earlier practice of using FIFO for the  purpose. The change in 

policy has reduced current profit and value of inventory by Rs.16,000. 

 

QUESTION 139 (MTP MARCH 19) (MTP MAY 18) 

On the basis of information given  below,  find  the  value  of  inventory  (by  periodic  inventory 

method) as per AS 2, to be considered while  preparing  the  Balance Sheet as on 31 st  March, 

2017 on weighted Average Basis. 

Details of Purchases: 

 

Date of purchase Unit (Nos.) Purchase cost per unit 
(Rs.) 

01-03-2017 20 108 

08-03-2017· 15 107 

17-03-2017 30 109 

25-03-2017 15 107 

Details of issue of 
Inventory: 

 

Date of Issue Unit (Nos.) 

03-03-2017 10 

12-03-2017 20 

18-03-2017 10 

24-03-2017 20 

Net realizable value of inventory as on 31st March, 2017 is Rs. 107.75  per  unit. What will be the  

value of Inventory as per AS2. 

ANSWER: 

Net Realisable Value of Inventory as on 31st March,2017 

= Rs. 107.75 x 20 units = Rs. 2,155 
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Value of inventory as per Weighted Average basis 

Total units purchased and total cost: 

01.03.2017 Rs.  108 x 20  units =  Rs.2160 

08.3.2017 Rs.  107 x 15  units =  Rs.1605 

17.03.2017 Rs.  109 x 30  units =  Rs.3270 

25.03.2017 Rs.  107 x 15  units =  Rs.1605 

Total 80 units = Rs. 8640 Weighted 

Average Cost = Rs. 8640/80 units = Rs.108 Total cost = Rs. 108 

x 20 units = Rs.2,160 

Value of inventory to be considered while preparing Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2017 is, Cost or 
Net Realisable value whichever is lower i.e. Rs. 2,155. 

 

 

QUESTION 140 (MTP MARCH 19) 

Mohan Ltd. has an existing freehold factory property, which it intends to knock  down  and  

redevelop. During the redevelopment period the company will move its production  facilities  to 

another (temporary)site. 

The following incremental costs will be incurred: 

Setup costs of Rs. 5,00,000 to install machinery in the new location. Rent of Rs. 15,00,000 

Removal costs of Rs. 3,00,000 to transport the machinery from the old location to the temporary 
location. 

Mohan Ltd. wants to seek your guidance as whether these costs can be c capitalized into the cost 
of the new building. You are required to advise in line with AS 10 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. 

ANSWER: 

Constructing or acquiring a new asset may result  in  incremental  costs  that  would  have  been 

avoided if the asset had not been constructed or acquired. These costs are not be included in the 

cost of the asset if they are not directly attributable to bringing the asset  to  the  location  and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner  intended by management. 

The costs to be incurred by the company are in the nature of costs of reducing or reorganizing the 

operations of the accompany. These costs do not meet that requirement of AS 10 “Property,  Plant 

and Equipment” and cannot, therefore, be capitalized. 
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QUESTION 141 (MTP OCTOBER 19) 

In the year 2018-19, an  entity  has  acquired a  new freehold building with a  useful  life of  50 

years for Rs. 75,00,000. The entity desires to calculate the depreciation charge per annum using 
a straight-line method. It has identified the following components (with no residual value of 

lifts & fixtures at the end of their useful life) as follows: 

 

Component Useful life 
(Years) 

Cost 

Land Infinite Rs. 10,00,000 
Roof 25 Rs. 15,00,000 

Lifts 20 Rs. 7,50,000 
Fixtures 10 Rs. 2,50,000 

Remainder of building 50 Rs. 40,00,000 
  Rs. 75,00,000 

Calculate depreciation for the year 2018-19 as per componentization method. Also state the 

treatment, in case Roof requires replacement at the end of its useful life. 

ANSWER: 

Statement showing amount of depreciation as per Componentization Method 

Component Depreciation(Per 
annum) 

(Rs.) 

Land Nil 

Roof 60,000 

Lifts 37,500 

Fixtures 25,000 

Remainder of Building   80,000 
 2,02,500 

Note: When the roof requires replacement at the end of its useful life the carrying amount will be 

nil. The cost of replacing the roof should be recognised as a new component. 

 

QUESTION 142 (MTP OCTOBER 19) 

Entity A, a supermarket chain, is renovating one of its major stores. The store will have more 

available space for store promotion outlets after the renovation and will include a restaurant. 

Management is preparing the budgets for the year after the store reopens, which include the cost 
of remodeling and the expectation of a 15% increase in sales resulting from the store renovations, 
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which will attract new customers. 

Decide whether the remodeling cost will be capitalized or not as per provision of AS 10 “Property 

plant & Equipment”. 

ANSWER: 

The expenditure in remodelling the store will create future economic benefits (in the form of  15% 

of increase in sales). Moreover, the cost of remodelling can be measured reliably, therefore, it 

should be capitalized in line with AS 10 PPE. 

 

QUESTION 143 (MTP OCTOBER 19) 

Mr. Mehul gives the following information relating to items forming part of inventory as on 31-

3-2019.HisfactoryproducesProductXusingRawmaterialA. 

(i) 600 units of Raw material A (purchased @ Rs. 120). Replacement cost of raw 

material A as  on 31-3-2019 is Rs. 90 per unit. 

(ii) 500 units of partly finished goods in the process of  producing  X  and cost 

incurred till  date Rs. 260 per unit. These units can be finished next year by 

incurring additional cost of Rs. 60 per unit. 

(iii) 1500 units of finished Product X and total cost incurred Rs. 320 per unit.  

Expected selling price of Product X is Rs. 300 per unit. 

Determine how each item of inventory will be valued as on 31-3-2019. Also calculate the value of 

total inventory as on 31-3-2019. 

ANSWER: 

As per AS 2 “Valuation of Inventories”, materials and other supplies held for use in the production 

of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be 

incorporated are expected to be sold at cost or above cost. However, when there has been a 

decline in the price of materials and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will 

exceed net realizable value, the materials are written down to net realizable value. In such 

circumstances, the replacement cost of the materials may be the best available measure of their 

net realizable value. In the given case, selling price of product X is Rs. 300 and total cost per unit 

for production is Rs.320. 

Hence the valuation will be done as under: 

(i) 600 units of raw material will be written down to replacement cost as market value 

of finished product is less than its cost, hence valued at Rs.90 per unit. 

(ii) 500  units  of  partly  finished  goods  will  be  valued  at  240  per  unit  i.e.  lower  of  

cost   Rs. 320 (Rs. 260 + additional cost Rs. 60) or Net estimated selling price or NRV 

i.e. Rs. 240 (Estimated selling price Rs.300 per unit less additional cost of Rs.60). 
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(iii) 1,500 units of finished product X will be valued at NRV of Rs. 300 per unit since it is 

lower  than cost Rs. 320 of product X. 

 

Valuation of Total Inventory as on 31.03.2019: 

 

 Units Cost (Rs.) NRV/Replaceme
nt 

cost 

Value = units x 
cost or NRV  

whichever is less 
(Rs.) 

Raw material A 600 120 90 54,000 

Partly finished 
goods 

500 260 240 1,20,000 

Finished goods X 1,500 320 300 4,50,000 

Value of Inventory    6,24,000 

 

QUESTION 144 (MTP OCTOBER 19) (MTP OCTOBER 20) 

ABC Ltd. has entered into a binding agreement with XYZ Ltd. to buy a custom-made machine 

amounting to Rs. 4,00,000. As on 31st March, 2018  before delivery of the machine, ABC  Ltd. 

had  to change its  method of  production. The new method will not require the machine 
ordered and so  it shall be scrapped after delivery. The expected scrap value is ‘NIL’. 

Show the treatment of machine in the books of ABC Ltd. 

ANSWER: 
A liability is recognized when outflow of economic resources in settlement of a present obligation 

can be anticipated and the value of outflow can be reliably measured. In the given case, ABC Ltd. 
should recognize a liability of Rs. 4,00,000 payable to XYZ Ltd. When flow of economic benefit to 

the enterprise beyond the current accounting period is considered improbable, the expenditure 

incurred is recognized as an expense rather than as an asset. In the present case, flow of future 

economic benefit from the machine to the enterprise is improbable. The entire amount of 

purchase price of the machine should be recognized as an expense. Hence ABC Ltd. should charge 
the amount of Rs. 4,00,000 (being loss due to change in production method) to Profit and loss 

statement and record the corresponding liability (amount payable to XYZ Ltd.) for the same 

amount in the books for the year ended 31st March,2018. 

 

QUESTION 145 (MTP OCTOBER 19) (RTP MAY 2018)  

Beta Ltd. is a full tax free enterprise for the first ten years of its existence and is in the second 

year of its operation. Depreciation  timing  difference  resulting  in  a  tax  liability  in  year  1  

and  2  is Rs. 1,000 lakhs and Rs. 2,000 lakhs respectively. From the third year it is expected that 
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the timing difference would reverse each year by Rs. 50 lakhs. Assuming tax rate of 40%, find  

out  the deferred tax liability at the end of the second year and any charge to the Profit and Loss 
account. 

ANSWER: 

As per para 13 of Accounting Standard (AS) 22, Accounting for Taxes on Income”, deferred tax in 

respect of timing differences which originate during the tax holiday period and reverse during the  

tax holiday period, should not be recognized to the extent deduction from the total income of an 
enterprise is allowed during the tax  holiday period as per the provisions of sections 10A and 10B  

of the Income-tax Act. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which originate during the tax 

holiday period but reverse after the tax  holiday period should be recognized in the year in which  

the timing differences originate. However, recognition of deferred tax assets should be subject to 

the consideration of prudence. For this purpose, the timing differences which originate first 
should be considered to reverse first. 

Out of Rs. 1,000 lakhs depreciation, timing difference amounting Rs. 400 lakhs (Rs. 50 lakhs x 8 

years) will reverse in the tax holiday period and therefore, should not be recognized. However, for 
Rs. 600 lakhs (Rs. 1,000 lakhs – Rs. 400 lakhs), deferred tax liability will be recognized for  Rs.  240 

lakhs (40% of Rs. 600 lakhs) in first year. In the second year, the entire amount of timing 

difference of Rs. 2,000 lakhs will reverse only after tax holiday period and hence, will be 
recognized in full. Deferred tax liability amounting Rs. 800 lakhs (40% of Rs. 2,000 lakhs) will be 

created by charging it to profit and loss account and the total balance of deferred tax liability 

account at the  endofsecondyearwillbeRs.1,040lakhs(240lakhs+800lakhs). 

 

QUESTION 146  (MTP MAY 20) (PAST PAPER NOVEMBER 18) 

Neon Enterprise operates a major chain of restaurants located in different cities. The company 

has acquired a new restaurant located at Chandigarh. The new restaurant requires significant 

renovation expenditure. Management expects that the renovations will last for 3 months during 
which the restaurant will be closed. 

Management has prepared the following budget for this period – 

Salaries of the staff engaged in preparation of restaurant before its opening Rs. 7,50,000 
Construction and remodelling cost of restaurant Rs. 30,00,000 

Explain the treatment of these expenditures as per the provisions of AS 10 "Property, Plant and 

Equipment". 

ANSWER: 

As per provisions of AS10, any cost directly attributable to bring the assets to the location and 

conditions necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner indicated by the 

management are called directly attributable costs and would be included in the costs of an item 
of PPE. Management of Neon Enterprise should capitalize the costs of construction and 

remodelling the  restaurant, because they are necessary to bring the restaurant to the  condition 

necessary for it to  be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The 
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restaurant cannot be opened without incurring the construction and remodelling expenditure 

amounting Rs.30,00,000 and thus the expenditure should be considered part of the asset. 
However, the cost of salaries of staff engaged in preparation of restaurant Rs.7,50,000 before its 

opening are in the nature of operating expenditure that would be incurred if the restaurant was 

open and these costs are not necessary to bring the restaurant to the conditions necessary for it 
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Hence, Rs.7,50,000 should 

be expensed. 

 

QUESTION 147  (MTP MAY 20) 

Explain the meaning of the terms ‘cash’ and ‘cash equivalent’ for the purpose of Cash Flow 

Statement as per AS-3. 

Ruby Exports had a bank balance of USD 25,000, stated in books at Rs. 16,76,250 using the rate 

of exchange Rs. 67.05 per USD prevailing on the date of receipt of dollars. However, on the 

balance sheet date, the closing rate of exchange was Rs. 67.80 and the bank balance had to be 
restated at Rs. 16,95,000. Comment on the effect of change in bank balance due to exchange 

rate fluctuation and also discuss how it will be disclosed in Cash Flow Statement of Ruby 

Exports with reference to AS3. 

ANSWER: 

Cash flow statement consists of: 

(a)Cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand with any bank or other financial institutions 

and  

(b)Cash equivalents, which are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 
into known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk or change in value. Cash flows 

are inflows (i.e. receipts) and outflows (i.e. payments) of cash and cash equivalents. Any 
transaction, which does not result in cash flow, should not be reported in the cash flow 

statement. Movements within cash or cash equivalents are not cash flows because they do not 

change cash as defined by AS 3 “Cash Flow Statements” which is sum of cash, bank and cash 
equivalents. 

In the given case, due to increase in rate of foreign exchange by 75 paise, there is increase 

(change) in bank balance. This increase of Rs.18,750 (25,000x0.75) is not a cash flow because 

neither there is any cash inflow nor there is any cash outflow. Therefore, this change in bank 
balance amounting Rs.18,750 need not be disclosed in Cash Flow Statement of Ruby exports. The 

net increase/decrease in Cash/Cash equivalents in the Cash Flow Statements are stated exclusive 
of exchange gains and losses. The resultant difference between Cash and Cash Equivalents as per 

the Cash flow statement and that recognized in the balance sheet is reconciled in the note on 

cash flow statements. 
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QUESTION 148  (MTP MAY 20) (PAST PAPER NOVEMVER 18) 

Following transactions of Nisha took placed During the financial year2019-20: 

1st April, 2019 Purchased 9,000 8% bonds of Rs. 100 each at Rs. 80.50 cum- 

interest. Interest is payable on 1st November and 1st May. 

1st May, 2019 Received half year’s interest on 8% bonds. 

10 July, 2019 Purchased 12,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each in Moon Limited 
for Rs.44eachthroughabroker,whochargedbrokerage@2%. 

1st October 2019 Sold 2,250 8% bonds at Rs. 81 Ex-interest. 

1st November, 2019 Received half year’s interest on 8% bonds. 

15th January, 2020 Moon Limited made a rights issue of one equity share for every 
four Equity shares held at Rs.5 per share. Nisha exercised the 
option for 40% of her entitlements and sold the balance rights 
in the market at Rs. 2.25 per share. 

15th March, 2020 Received 18% interim dividend on equity shares of Moon Limited. 

Prepare separate investment account for 8% bonds and equity shares of Moon Limited in the books of Nisha for the 

year ended on 31stMarch, 2020. Assume that the average cost method is followed. 

ANSWER: 

In the books of Nisha 

8% Bonds for the year ended 31stMarch, 2020 

Date Particulars No. Incom 
eR
s. 

Amount 
Rs. 

Date Particulars No. Income 
Rs. 

Amount 
Rs. 

2019 
1April,  
 
Oct. 1 

 
To Bank 

 
9,000 

 
30,000 

 
6,94,500 

1 May 
2019 

By Bank- 
Interest 

- 36,000  

 To P & L A/c 
(W.N.1) 

- - 8,625 1 Oct. 
2019 

By Bank A/c 2,250 7,500 1,82,250 

2020 

March 
31 

To P & L A/c  40,500  1 Nov. 
2020 

By Bank- 
Interest 

 27,000  

    
 

  

 
 

  

2020 
Mar. 
31 

By Balance c/d 
(W.N.2) 

 
 

6,750 

 
 

 - 

 
 
5,20,875 

9,000 

  70,500 7,03,125   9,000 70,500 7,03,125 
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Investment in Equity shares of Moon Ltd. for the year ended 31stMarch, 2020 

Date Particular
s 

No. Incom
e 

Rs. 

Amoun
t 

Rs. 

Date Particulars No. Incom
e 

Rs. 

Amoun
t 

Rs. 

2019 
July 
10 

To 
Bank 
A/c 

12,000 -- 5,38,560 2020 
March 
15 

By Bank – 
dividend* 

-  23,760  

2020 
Jan. 
15 

To 
Bank 
A/c 

(W.N. 
3) 

1,200 - 6,000 March 
31 

By 
Balance 
c/d 
(bal.fig.) 

 
 

13,200 

  
 

- 

 
 

5,44,560 

March 
31 

To P & L 
A/c 

 
 - 

 
23,760 

      

  13,200 23,760 5,44,560   13,200  23,760 5,44,560 

Considering that dividend was received on right shares also. Working 

Notes: 

1. Profit on sale of 8%Bonds 

Sales price Rs.1,82,250 

Less: Cost of bond sold=6,94,500/9,000x2,250 (Rs.1,73,625) 

Profit on sale Rs. 8,625 

2. Closingbalanceason31.3.2020of8%Bonds 6,94,500/ 

9,000 x 6,750= Rs.5,20,875 

3. Calculation of right shares subscribed in Moon Ltd.  

Right Shares=12,000/4x1=3,000shares 

Shares subscribed by Nisha = 3,000 x 40%= 1,200 shares 

Value of right shares subscribed = 1,200 shares @ Rs. 5 per share = Rs. 6,000 

4. Calculation of sale of right entitlement by Moon Ltd. 

No. of right shares sold = 3,000 – 1,200 = 1,800 rights for Rs. 4,050 

Note: As per para 13 of AS 13, sale proceeds of rights are to be credited to P & L A/c. 
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QUESTION 149  (MTP OCTOBER 20) 

Om Ltd. purchased an item of property, plant  and equipment for US $ 50 lakh on 01.04.2019 

and   the same was fully financed by the foreign currency loan [US $] repayable in five equal 

instalments annually. (Exchange rate at the time of purchase was 1 US $ = ₹ 60]. As on 

31.03.2020 the first instalment was paid when 1 US $ fetched ₹ 62.00. The entire loss on 

exchange was included in cost of goods sold. Om Ltd. normally provides depreciation on an item 

of property, plant and equipment at 20% on WDV basis and exercised the option to adjust the 

cost of asset for exchange difference arising out of loan restatement and payment.  Calculate 

the amount of exchange  loss,  

itstreatmentanddepreciationonthisitemofproperty,plantandequipment. 

ANSWER: 

Exchange differences arising on restatement or repayment of liabilities incurred for the purpose 
of acquiring an item of property, plant and equipment should be adjusted in the carrying amount 
of  the respective item of property, plant and equipment as Om Ltd. has exercised the option and 
it is long term foreign currency monetary item. Thus, the entire exchange loss due to variation of 
Rs. 20 lakh on 31.03.2020 on payment of US $ 10 lakh, should be added to  the carrying amount of 
an  item of property, plant and equipment and not to the cost of goods sold. Further, depreciation 
onthe unamortized depreciable amount should also be provided. 

 

Calculation of Exchange loss: 

Foreign currency loan (in Rs.) = (50 lakh $ x Rs. 60) = Rs. 3,000 lakh 

Exchange loss on outstanding loan on 31.03.2020 = Rs. 40 lakh US $ x (62.00-60.00) = Rs. 80 lakh. 

So, Rs. 80 lakh should also be added to cost of an item of property, plant and equipment with 
corresponding credit to outstanding loan in addition to Rs. 20 lakh on account of exchange loss on 
payment of instalment. The total cost of an item of property, plant and equipment to be increased  
by Rs. 100 lakh. Total depreciation to be provided for the year 2019 - 2020 = 20% of (Rs. 3,000Iakh 
+ 100 lakh) = Rs. 620 lakh. 

 

 

QUESTION  150 (MTP OCTOBER 20) (PAST PAPER MAY 18) 

On 01.04.2017, XYZ Ltd. received Government grant of ₹ 100 Lakhs for an acquisition of new 
machinery costing ₹ 500 lakhs. The grant was received and credited to the cost of the assets. 
The life span of the machinery is 5 years. The machinery is depreciated at 20% on WDV method. 

The company had to refund the entire grant in 2nd April, 2020 due to non-fulfilment of certain 
conditions which was imposed by the government at the time of approval of grant. How do you 
deal with the refund of grant to the Government in the books of XYZ Ltd. as per AS 12? 

ANSWER: 
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According to AS 12 on Accounting for Government Grants, the amount refundable in respect of a 

grant related to a specific fixed asset (if the grant had been credited to  the cost of  fixed asset at 
the time of receipt of grant) should be recorded by increasing the book value of the asset, by the 

amount refundable. Where the book value is increased, depreciation on the revised book value 

should be provided prospectively over the residual useful life of the asset. 

 

  (Rs. in lakhs) 

1st April, 2017 Acquisition cost of machinery (Rs. 500 – 
Rs.100) 

400.00 

31st March, 
2018 

Less: Depreciation @ 20%   (80) 

1st April, 2018 Book value 320.00 

31st March, 
2019 

Less: Depreciation @ 20% (64) 

1st April, 2019 Book value 256.00 

31st March, 
2020 

Less: Depreciation @ 20%  (51.20) 

1st April, 2020 Book value 204.80 

2nd April, 2020 Add: Refund of grant   100.00 

 Revised book value   304.80 

Depreciation @ 20% on the revised book value amounting Rs. 304.80 lakhs is to be provided 
prospectively over the residual useful life of the asset. 

 

 

 

QUESTION  151  (MTP OCTOBER 20) 

Omega Ltd, a supermarket chain, is renovating one of its major stores. The store will have  more 

available space for store promotion outlets after the renovation and will include a restaurant. 

Management is preparing the budgets for the year after the store reopens, which include the 

cost of remodelling and the expectation of a 15% increase in sales resulting from the store 

renovations, which will attract new customers. 

Decide whether Omega Ltd. can capitalize the remodelling cost or not as per  provisions  of  AS 

10 “Property plant &Equipment”. 

ANSWER: 

The expenditure in remodelling the store will create future economic benefits (in the form of 15% 

of increase in sales). Moreover, the cost of remodelling can be measured reliably, therefore, it 
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should be capitalized in line with AS10. 

 

QUESTION  152 (MTP OCTOBER 20) 

 
What do you mean by the term “cash and cash equivalent” as per AS 3? From the following 

information of XYZ Limited, calculate cash and cash equivalent as on31-03-2019. 

Particulars Amount (₹) 

Cash balance with Bank 10,000 
Fixed Deposit created on 01-11-2018 and maturing on15-07-2019 75,000 

Short Term Investment in highly liquid Sovereign Debt Mutual 
fund made on 01-03-2019 (having maturity period of less than 3 
months) 

1,00,000 

Bank Balance in a Foreign Currency Account in India $ 1,000 

(Conversion Rate: 

on the day of deposit ₹ 69/USD; ₹ 70/USD as on 31-03-2019) 

 

Debentures purchased of ₹ 10 lacs of A  Ltd.,  which  are  

redeemable  on 31st October,2019 

90,000 

Shares of Alpha Ltd. purchased on 1st January, 2019 60,000 

ANSWER: 

As per AS 3, Cash and cash equivalents consists of:    (i)  Cash in  hand  and  deposits repayable on 

demand with any bank or other financial institutions and  (ii)Cash  equivalents,  which  are   short 

term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and  are 
subject to insignificant risk or change in value. A short-term investment is one, which is due for 

maturity within three months from the date of acquisition. Investments in shares are not normally 

taken as cash equivalent, because of uncertainties associated with the realizable value. 

 

QUESTION  153 (STUDY MATERIAL ) 

With reference to AS-10 Revised, classify the items under the following heads:  
 
HEADS  
 
(i) Purchase Price of Property, plant and Equipment (PPE)  
 
(ii) Directly attributable cost of PPE or  
 
(iii) Cost not included in determining the carrying amount of an item of PPE.  
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ITEMS  
 
(1) Import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes.  
 
(2) Initial delivery and handling costs.  
 
(3) Initial operating losses, such as those incurred while demand for the output of an item builds 
up.  
 
(4) Costs incurred while an item capable of operating in the manner intended by management has 
yet to be brought into use or is operated at less than full capacity.  
 
(5) Trade discounts and rebates.  
 
(6) Costs of relocating or reorganizing part or all of the operations of an enterprise.  
 
(7) Installation and assembly costs.  
 

(8) Administration and other general overhead costs. 

 

ANSWER  

As per AS 2 (Revised) ‘Valuation of Inventories’, certain costs are excluded from the cost of the 
inventories and are recognised as expenses in the period in which incurred. Examples of such costs 
are:  
 
(a) abnormal amount of wasted materials, labour, or other production costs;  
 
(b) storage costs, unless those costs are necessary in the production process prior to a further 
production stage;  
 
(c) administrative overheads that do not contribute to bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition; and  
 

(d) selling and distribution costs. 

 

 

QUESTION  154 (STUDY MATERIAL ) 
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Mr. Mehul gives the following information relating to items forming part of inventory as on 31-3-
20X1. His factory produces Product X using Raw material A.  
 

(i) 600 units of Raw material A (purchased @ ₹ 120). Replacement cost of raw material A as on 31-

3-20X1 is ₹ 90 per unit. 

(ii) 500 units of partly finished goods in the process of producing X and cost incurred till date ₹ 260 
per unit. These units can be finished next year by incurring additional cost of ₹ 60 per unit.  
 
(iii) 1500 units of finished Product X and total cost incurred ₹ 320 per unit.  
Expected selling price of Product X is ₹ 300 per unit.  
Determine how each item of inventory will be valued as on 31-3-20X1. Also calculate the value of 

total inventory as on 31-3-20X1. 

 

ANSWER  

As per AS 2 (Revised) “Valuation of Inventories”, materials and other supplies held for use in the production of 

inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are 

expected to be sold at cost or above cost. However, when there has been a decline in the price of materials 

and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed net realisable value, the materials are 

written down to net realisable value. In such circumstances, the replacement cost of the materials may be the 

best available measure of their net realisable value. In the given case, selling price of product X is ₹ 300 and 

total cost per unit for production is ₹ 320.  

 
Hence the valuation will be done as under:  
 
(i) 600 units of raw material will be written down to replacement cost as market value of finished 
product is less than its cost, hence valued at ₹ 90 per unit.  
 

(ii) 500 units of partly finished goods will be valued at 240 per unit i.e. lower ofcost (₹ 260) or Net 
realisable value ₹ 240 (Estimated selling price ₹ 300 per unit less additional cost of ₹ 60).  
 
(iii) 1,500 units of finished product X will be valued at NRV of ₹ 300 per unit since it is lower than cost 
₹ 320 of product X.  
 

Valuation of Total Inventory as on 31.03.20X1: 

 Units  Cost (₹)  NRV / Replacement 
cost  

Value = units x 
cost or NRV 
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whichever is less 
(₹)  

Raw material A  
Partly finished goods  
Finished goods X  

600  
500  
1,500  

120  
260  
320  

90  
240  
300  

54,000  
1,20,000  
4,50,000  

Value of Inventory  6,24,000     

 

 

QUESTION  155 (STUDY MATERIAL ) 

Blue-chip Equity Investments Ltd., wants to re-classify its investments in accordance with AS 13 
(Revised). State the values, at which the investments have to be reclassified in the following cases:  
 
(i) Long term investments in Company A, costing ₹ 8.5 lakhs are to be re-classified as current. The 
company had reduced the value of these investments to ₹ 6.5 lakhs to recognise ‘other than 
temporary’ decline in value. The fair value on date of transfer is ₹ 6.8 lakhs.  
 
(ii) Long term investments in Company B, costing ₹ 7 lakhs are to be re-classified as current. The 
fair value on date of transfer is ₹ 8 lakhs and book value is ₹ 7 lakhs.  
 

(iii) Current investment in Company C, costing ₹ 10 lakhs are to be re-classified as long term as the 

company wants to retain them. The market value on date of transfer is ₹ 12 lakhs. 

ANSWER   

As per AS 13 (Revised) ‘Accounting for Investments’, where long-term investments are reclassified as 
current investments, transfers are made at the lower of cost and carrying amount at the date of 
transfer. And where investments are reclassified from current to long term, transfers are made at 
lower of cost and fair value on the date of transfer.  
 
Accordingly, the re-classification will be done on the following basis:  
 
(i) In this case, carrying amount of investment on the date of transfer is less than the cost; hence this 
re-classified current investment should be carried at ₹ 6.5 lakhs in the books.  
 
(ii) The carrying / book value of the long term investment is same as cost i.e. ₹ 7 lakhs. Hence this 
long term investment will be reclassified as current investment at book value of ₹ 7 lakhs only.  
(iii) In this case, reclassification of current investment into long-term investments will be made at ₹ 

10 lakhs as cost is less than its market value of ₹ 12 lakhs. 
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QUESTION  156 STUDY MATERIAL ) 

From the following information of XYZ Limited, calculate cash and cash equivalent as on 31-03-

20X2 as per AS-3. 

Particulars  Amount (₹)  

Balance as per the Bank Statement  25,000  

Cheque issued but not presented in the Bank  15,000  

Short Term Investment in liquid equity shares of ABC 
Limited  

50,000  

Fixed Deposit created on 01-11-20X1 and maturing on15-04-
20X2  

75,000  

Short Term Investment in highly liquid Sovereign Debt 
Mutual fund on 01-03-20X2 (having maturity period of less 
than 3 months)  

1,00,000  

Bank Balance in a Foreign Currency Account in India  $ 1,000  

(Conversion Rate: On the day of deposit ₹ 69/USD as on 31-03-20X2 ₹ 
70/USD)  

 

ANSWER  

Computation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as on 31st March, 20X2 

₹   

Cash balance with bank (₹ 25,000 less ₹ 15,000)  10,000  

Short term investment in highly liquid sovereign debt mutual fund 
on 1.3.20X2  

1,00,000  

Bank balance in foreign currency account ($1,000 x ₹ 70)  70,000  

1,80,000   

 

Note: Short term investment in liquid equity shares and fixed deposit will not be considered as cash 

and cash equivalents 

 

 

QUESTION  157  STUDY MATERIAL ) 

On 1st April, 20X1, Amazing Construction Ltd. obtained a loan of ₹ 32 crores to be utilised as under: 

(i) Construction of sea link across two cities:  

(work was held up totally for a month during the :  ₹ 25 crores  
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year due to high water levels)  

(ii) Purchase of equipments and machineries  :  ₹ 3 crores  

(iii) Working capital  :  ₹ 2 crores  

(iv) Purchase of vehicles  :  ₹ 50,00,000  

(v) Advance for tools/cranes etc.  :  ₹ 50,00,000  

(vi) Purchase of technical know-how  :  ₹ 1 crores  

(vii)Total interest charged by the bank for the 
year ending 31st March, 20X2  

:  ₹ 80,00,000  

 

Show the treatment of interest by Amazing Construction Ltd. 

ANSWER  

According  to  AS 16  ‘Borrowing costs’, qualifying  asset is an asset that necessarily takes substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use.  
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 

qualifying asset should be capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs should 

be recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred 

The treatment of interest by Amazing Construction Ltd. can be shown as: 

 

 Qualifying 
Asset  

Interest to be 
capitalised ₹  

Interest to be 
charged to 
Profit & Loss 
A/c ₹  

 

Construction of sea-link  Yes  62,50,000  [80,00,000x(25/32)]  

Purchase of equipments 
and machineries  

No   7,50,000  [80,00,000x(3/32)]  

Working capital  No   5,00,000  [80,00,000x(2/32)]  

Purchase of vehicles  No   1,25,000  [80,00,000x(0.5/32)]  

Advance for tools, cranes 
etc.  

No   1,25,000  [80,00,000x(0.5/32)]  

Purchase of technical 
know-how  

No   2,50,000  [80,00,000x(1/32)]  

Total   62,50,000 17,50,000  

Computation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as on 31st March, 2019 
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 Rs. 

Cash balance with bank 10,000 

Short term investment in highly liquid sovereign debt mutual 
fund on 1.3.19 

1,00,000 

Bank balance in foreign currency account ($1,000 x Rs.70) 70,000 

 1,80,000 

Note: Fixed deposit, Shares and Debentures will not be considered as cash and cash equivalents. 

 

 

QUESTION  158 (PAST PAPER MAY 18) 

ABC Ltd. borrowed US $ 5,00,000 on 01/07/2017, which was repaid as on 31/07/2017.  ABC Ltd. 
prepares financial statement ending on 31/03/2017. Rate of Exchange between 

reportingcurrency(INR)andforeigncurrency(USD)ondifferentdatesareasunder: 

 

01/01/2017 1 US$ = Rs. 68.50 

31/03/2017 1 US $ = Rs. 69.50 

31/07/2017 1 US $ = Rs. 70.00 

You are required to pass necessary  journal  entries  in  the  books  of  ABC  Ltd.  as  per AS11. 

ANSWER: 

Journal Entries in the Books of ABC Ltd. 

 

Date Particulars Rs. (Dr.) Rs. (Cr.) 

Jan. 01, 2017 Bank Account (5,00,000x68.50) Dr. 342,50,00
0 

 

 To Foreign Loan Account  342,50,00
0 

Mar. 31, 
2017 

Foreign Exchange Difference Account 
Dr. 

5,00,000  

 To Foreign Loan 
Account [5,00,000 x 
(69.50-68.50)] 

 5,00,000 

Jul. 31, 2017 Foreign Exchange Difference 
Account [5,00,000x(70-69.5)]
 Dr
. 

2,50,000  

 Foreign Loan Account Dr. 347,50,00  
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0 

 To Bank Account  350,00,00
0 

 

QUESTION  159 (PAST PAPER NOVEMBER 18) 

HIL Ltd. was making provision for  non-moving  stocks  based  on  no  issues  having  occurred for 

the last 12 months upto 31.03.2017. The company now  wants  to  make provision based on 

technical evaluation during the year ending 31.03.2018. 

Total value of stock Rs.120 lakhs 

Provision required based on technical evaluation Rs.3.00 lakhs. Provision 

required based on 12 months no issues Rs.4.00 lakhs. 

You are requested to discuss the following points in the light  of  Accounting  Standard (AS)-1: 

(i) Does this amount to change in accounting policy? 

(ii) Can the company change the method of accounting? 

ANSWER: 

The decision of making provision for non-moving inventories on the basis of technical evaluation 

does not amount to change in accounting policy. Accounting policy of  a company may require 

that provision for non-moving inventories should be made but the basis for making provision will 

not constitute accounting policy. The method  of estimating the amount of provision may be 

changed in case a more prudent estimate can be made. 

In the given case, considering the total value of inventory, the change in the amount of required 

provision of non-moving inventory from Rs. 4 lakhs to Rs.  3  lakhs  is  also  not  material. The 

disclosure can be made for such change in the following lines by  way of  notes to the accounts in 

the annual accounts of HIL Ltd. for the year 2017 -18  in  the following manner: 

“The company has provided for non-moving inventories on the  basis  of  technical evaluation 

unlike preceding years. Had the same  method  been  followed  as  in  the previous year, the profit 
for the year and the  value  of  net  assets at the end of the year  would have been lower by Rs. 

1lakh.” 

 

QUESTION  160 (PAST PAPER MAY 19) (PAST PAPER JAN 21) 

Rs.2,00,000  as  a  special  loan  to  finance  the  construction   of  the   factory   building  on 1st 

April, 2017 at an interest rate of 8% per annum. Further, expenditure on construction  of the 

factory building was financed through other non-specific loans. Details of other outstanding non-

specific loans were: 
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Amount (Rs.) Rate of Interest per 
annum 

4,00,000 9% 

5,00,000 12% 

3,00,000 14% 

The expenditures that were made on the factory building construction were as follows: 

 

Date Amount (Rs.) 

1st April, 2017 3,00,000 

31st May, 2017 2,40,000 

1st August, 2017 4,00,000 

31st December, 2017 3,60,000 

The construction of factory building was completed by 31st March, 2018. As  per  the provisions 

of AS 16, you are required to: 

(1) Calculate the amount of interest to be capitalized. 

(2) Pass Journal entry for capitalizing the cost and borrowing cost in respect of the 

factory building. 

ANSWER: 

(i)  Computation of average accumulated expenses 

 

 Rs. 

Rs. 3,00,000 x 12 / 12 = 3,00,000 

Rs. 2,40,000 x 10 / 12 = 2,00,000 

Rs. 4,00,000 x 8 / 12 = 2,66,667 

Rs. 3,60,000 x 3 / 12 =   90,000 
  8,56,667 

(ii) Calculation of average interest rate other than for specific borrowings 

 

Amount of loan (Rs.) Rate of 
interest 

Amount of 
interest 
(Rs.) 

4,00,000 9% = 36,000 

5,00,000 12% = 60,000 

3,00,000 14% =  42,000 

tel:8334866117
http://www.caraviagarwal.com/
https://youtube.com/MissionCAwithCARaviAgarwal


 

 

1
4

7
 

    1,38,00
0 

Weighted average rate of interest 
 

 = 11.5% 

 

(iii) Amount of interest to be capitalized 

 

 Rs. 

Interest on average accumulated expenses:   
16,00
0 

Specific borrowings (Rs. 2,00,000 x 8%) = 

Non-specific borrowings (Rs. 6,56,667 x 11.5%) = 75,517 

Amount of interest to be capitalised = 91,517 

(iv) Total expenses to be capitalised for building 

 

 Rs. 

Cost of building Rs. (3,00,000 + 2,40,000 + 4,00,000 + 
3,60,000) 

13,00,000 

Add: Amount of interest to be capitalized 91,517 

 13,91,517 

(v) Journal Entry 

 

Date Particulars  Dr. 
(Rs.) 

Cr. (Rs.) 

31.3.201
8 

Building A/c Dr. 13,91,5
17 

 

To Building WIP A/c 13,00,000 

To Borrowing costs A/c 91,517 

(Being amount of cost of building 

and borrowing cost thereon 

capitalised) 
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QUESTION  161 (PAST PAPER NOVEMBER 19) 

Prepare cash flow from investing activities as per AS 3 of  M/s Subham Creative  Limited for 

year ended31.3.2019. 

  

Particulars Amount 
(Rs.) 

Machinery acquired by issue of shares at face value 2,00,000 

Claim received for loss of machinery in earthquake 55,000 

Unsecured loans given to associates 5,00,000 

Interest on loan received from associate company 70,000 

Pre-acquisition dividend received on investment made 52,600 

Debenture interest paid 1,45,200 

Term loan repaid 4,50,000 

Interest received on investment (TDS of Rs. 8,200 was 
deducted on the above interest) 

73,800 

Purchased debentures of X Ltd., on. 1st December, 2018 which 
are redeemable within 3 months 

3,00,000 

Book value of plant & machinery sold (loss incurred Rs. 9,600) 90,000 

ANSWER: 

Cash Flow Statement from Investing Activities of Subham 

Creative Limited for the year ended 31-03-2019 

Cash generated from investing activities Rs. Rs. 

Interest on loan received 70,000  

Pre-acquisition dividend received on investment 
made 

52,600 

Unsecured loans given to subsidiaries (5,00,000) 

Interest received on investments (gross value) 82,000  

TDS deducted on interest (8,200) 

Sale of Plant & Machinery Rs.(90,000 – 9,600) 80,400  

Cash used in investing activities (before extra-
ordinary item) 

 (2,23,200) 

Extraordinary claim received for loss of machinery   55,000 

Net cash used in investing activities (after extra-
ordinary item) 

 (1,68,200) 
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Note: 

1. Debenture interest paid and Term Loan repaid are financing activities and therefore 

not considered for preparing cash flow from investing activities. 

2. Machinery acquired by issue of shares does not amount to cash outflow, hence also 

not considered in the above cash flow statement. 

3. The investments made in debentures are for short-term, it will be treated as ‘cash 

equivalent’ and will not be considered as outflow in cash flow statement. 

 

QUESTION  162 (PAST PAPER NOVEMBER 19) 

Karan Enterprises having its Head Office in Mangalore, Karnataka has a branch in Greenville, 
USA. Following is the trial balance of Branch as at31 -3-2019: 

 

Particulars Amount($) 

Dr. 

Amount($) 

Cr. 

Fixed assets 8,000  
 
 
 
 

24,050 

Opening inventory 800 

Cash 700 

Goods received from Head Office 2,800 

Sales  

Purchases 11,800 

Expenses 1,800  

Remittance to head office 2,450  

Head office account    4,300 
 28,350 28,350 

(i) Fixed assets were purchased on 1st April,2015. 

(ii) Depreciationat10%p.a.istobechargedonfixedassetsonstraightlinemethod.· 

(iii) Closing inventory at branch is $ 700 as on31-3-2019. 

(iv) Goods received from Head Office (HO)wererecordedatRs.1,85,500inHObooks. 

(v) Remittances to HO were recorded at Rs. 1,62,000 in HO books. 

(vi) HO account is recorded in HO books at Rs.2,84,500. 

(vii) Exchange rates of US Dollar at different dates can be taken as :  
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                        1-4-2015 Rs.63 

1-4-2018 Rs.65and 

31-3-2019 Rs.67 

Prepare the trial balance after been converted into Indian rupees in accordance  with AS-11. 

ANSWER: 

Trial Balance of Foreign Branch (converted into Indian Rupees) as on March 31,2019 

Particulars $ (Dr.) $ (Cr.) Conversion 
Basis 

Rate Rs. (Dr.) Rs. (Cr.) 

Fixed Assets 8,000  Transaction 
Date Rate 

63 5,04,000  

Opening Inventory 800 Opening Rate 65 52,000 

Goods Received 
from HO 

2,800 Actuals  1,85,500 

Sales  24,050 Average Rate 66  15,87,300 

Purchases 11,800  Average Rate 66 7,78,800  

Expenses 1,800  Average Rate 66 1,18,800  

Cash 700  Closing Rate 67 46,900  

Remittance to HO 2,450  Actuals  1,62,000  

HO Account  4,300 Actuals   2,84,500 

Exchange Rate 
Difference 

  Balancing 
Figure 

 23,800  

 28,350 28,350   18,71,800 18,71,800 

Closing Stock 700  Closing Rate 67 46,900  
Depreciation 800 Fixed Asset 

Rate 
63 50,400 

 

 

QUESTION  163 (PAST PAPER NOVEMBER 19) 

Mr. Rakshit gives the following information relating to items forming part of inventory as on 

31st March, 2019. His factory produces product X using raw material A. 

(i) 800 units of raw material A (purchased @ Rs. 140 per unit). Replacement cost of 

raw material A as on 31st March, 2019 is Rs. 190 per unit. 

(ii) 650 units of partly finished goods in the process of producing X and cost incurred 
till date Rs. 310 per unit. These units can be finished next year by incurring 
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additional cost of Rs. 50 per unit. 

(iii) 1,800 units of finished product X and total cost incurred Rs. 360 per 

unit. Expected selling price of product X is Rs. 350 per unit. 

In the context of AS-2,  determine  how  each  item  of  inventory  will  be  valued  as  

on  31st March, 2019. Also, calculate the value of total inventory as on 31st 

March,2019. 

ANSWER: 

As per AS 2 (Revised) “Valuation of Inventories”, materials and other supplies held for use in the 
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they 
will be incorporated are expected to be sold at cost or above cost. However, when there has been 
a decline in the price of materials and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will 
exceed net realizable value, the materials are written down to net realizable value. In such 
circumstances, the replacement cost of the materials may be the best available measure of their 
net realizable value. In the given case, selling price of product X is Rs. 350 and total cost per unit 
for production is Rs.360. 

Hence the valuation will be done as under: 

(i) 800 units of raw material will be valued at cost 140. 

(ii) 650 units of partly finished goods  will  be  valued at  300 per unit* i.e. lower of  cost  
(Rs. 310) or Net realizable value Rs. 300 (Estimated selling price Rs. 350 per unit less 
additional cost of Rs.50). 

(iii) 1,800 units of finished product X will be valued at NRV of Rs. 350 per unit since it is 
lower than cost Rs. 360 of product X. 

 

Valuation of Total Inventory as on 31.03.2019: 

 Units Cos
t 
(R
s.) 

NRV/ 
Replacemen

t 
cost 

Rs. 

Value = 
units x cost 
or NRV 
whichever 
is 

less 
(Rs.) 

Rs. 

Raw material A 800 140 190 1,12,000 (800 x 140) 

Partly finished 
goods 

650 310 300 1,95,000 (650 x 300) 

Finished goods X 1,800 60 350 6,30,000 (1,800 x 350) 

Value of 
Inventory 

   9,37,000  
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*It has been assumed that the partly finished unit cannot be sold in semi-finished form and its 

NRV is zero without processing it further. 

 

 

QUESTION  164 (RTP JULY 2021) 

The draft results of Surya Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2020, prepared on the hitherto 

followed accounting policies and presented for perusal of the board of directors showed a deficit 

of ₹ 10 crores. The board in consultation with the managing director, decided to value year-end 

inventory at works cost (₹ 50 crores) instead of the hitherto method of valuation of inventory at 

prime cost (₹ 30 crores). As chief accountant of the company, you are asked by the managing 

director to draft the notes on accounts for inclusion in the annual report for 2019-2020. 

ANSWER: 

As per AS 1, any change in the accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period or 
which is reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods should be disclosed. In the 
case of a change in accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period, the amount 
by which any item in the financial statements is affected by such change should also be disclosed to 
the extent ascertainable. Where such amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should 
be indicated. Accordingly, the notes on accounts should properly disclose the change and its effect.  
Notes on Accounts:  

“During the year inventory has been valued at factory cost, against the practice of valuing it at prime 

cost as was the practice till last year. This has been done to take cognizance of the more capital 

intensive method of production on account of heavy capital expenditure during the year. As a result 

of this change, the year-end inventory has been valued at ₹ 50 crores and the profit for the year is 

increased by ₹ 20 crores.” 

 

QUESTION  165 (RTP JULY 2021) 

The inventory of Rich Ltd. as on 31st March, 2020 comprises of Product – A: 200 units and 

Product – B: 800 units. 

Details of cost for these products are: 

Product – A: Material cost, wages cost and overhead cost of each unit are ₹ 40, ₹ 30 and ₹ 20 

respectively, Each unit is sold at ₹ 110, selling expenses amounts to 10% of selling costs. 

Product – B: Material cost and wages cost of each unit are ₹ 45 and ₹ 35 respectively and normal 

selling rate is ₹ 150 each, however due to defect in the manufacturing process 800 units of 

Product-B were expected to be sold at ₹ 70. 
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You are requested to value closing inventory according to AS 2 after considering the above. 

 

ANSWER: 

According to AS 2 ‘Valuation of Inventories’, inventories should be valued at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value.  

Product – A 

 

Material cost  ₹ 40 x 200 = 8,000   

Wages cost  ₹ 30 x 200 = 6,000   

Overhead  ₹ 20 x 200 = 4,000   

Total cost   ₹ 18,000  

Realizable value [200 
x (110-11)]  

 ₹ 19,800  

Hence inventory value 
of Product -A  

 ₹ 18,000  

 

Product – B 

Material cost  ₹ 45 x 800 = 36,000   

Wages cost  ₹ 35 x 800 = 28,000   

Total cost   ₹ 64,000  

Realizable value (800 x 70)   ₹ 56,000  

Hence inventory value of 
Product-B  

 ₹ 56,000  

Total Value of closing 
inventory i.e. Product A + 
Product B (18,000+ 56,000)  

 ₹ 74,000  

 

QUESTION  166 (RTP JULY 2021) 

You are required to give the correct accounting treatment for the following in line with provisions 

of AS 10: (a) Trozen Ltd. operates a major chain of supermarkets all over India. It acquires a new 

store in Pune which requires significant renovation expenditure. It is expected that the 

renovations will be done in 2 months during which the store will be closed. The budget for this 

period, including expenditure related to construction and remodelling costs (₹ 18 lakhs), salaries 

of staff (₹ 2 lakhs) who will be preparing the store before its opening and related utilities costs (₹ 

1.5 lakhs), is prepared. The cost of salaries of the staff and utilities are operating expenditures 

that would be incurred even after the opening of the supermarket. What will the treatment of all 

these expenditures in the books of accounts?  
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ANSWER: 

Trozen Ltd. should capitalize the costs of construction and remodelling the supermarket, because they are 

necessary to bring the store to the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended. The supermarket cannot be opened without incurring the remodelling expenditure. Therefore, 

this construction and remodelling expenditure of ₹ 18 lakh should be considered as part of the cost of the 

asset. However, the cost of salaries of the staff ₹ 2 lakh and utilities cost ₹ 1.5 lakh are operating 

expenditures that would be incurred even after the opening of the supermarket. Therefore, these costs are 

not necessary to bring the store to the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by the management and should be expensed. 

 

QUESTION  167 (RTP JULY 2021) 

 ABC Ltd is setting up a new refinery outside the city limits. In order to facilitate the construction 

of the refinery and its operations, ABC Ltd. is required to incur expenditure on the 

construction/development of railway siding, road and bridge. Though ABC Ltd. incurs the 

expenditure on the construction/development, it will not have ownership rights on these items 

and they are also available for use to other entities and public at large. Can ABC Ltd. capitalize 

expenditure incurred on these items as property, plant and equipment (PPE)? 

ANSWER: 

AS 10 states that the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognized as an 
asset if, and only if:  
(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and  
(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  
 
Further, the standard provides that the standard does not prescribe the unit of measure for 
recognition, i.e., what constitutes an item of property, plant and equipment. Thus, judgement is 
required in applying the recognition criteria to an entity’s specific circumstances. The cost of an item 
of property, plant and equipment comprise any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management.  

 
In the given case, railway siding, road and bridge are required to facilitate the construction of 
the refinery and for its operations. Expenditure on these items isrequired to be incurred in order 
to get future economic benefits from the project as a whole which can be considered as the unit of 
measure for the purpose of capitalization of the said expenditure even though the company cannot 
restrict the access of others for using the assets individually. It is apparent that the aforesaid 
expenditure is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it 
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.  
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In view of this, even though ABC Ltd. may not be able to recognize expenditure incurred on these 

assets as an individual item of property, plant and equipment in many cases (where it cannot 

restrict others from using the asset), expenditure incurred may be capitalized as a part of overall 

cost of the project. From this, it can be concluded that, in the given case the expenditure incurred 

on these assets, i.e., railway siding, road and bridge, should be considered as the cost of 

constructing the refinery and accordingly, expenditure incurred on these items should be allocated 

and capitalized as part of the items of property, plant and equipment of the refinery. 

 

QUESTION  168 (RTP JULY 2021) 

 (a) Classify the following items into Monetary and Non-monetary:  
(i) Share capital; (ii) Trade Payables; (iii) Cash balance; (iv) Property, plant and equipment  
 

ANSWER : 
Share capital - Non-monetary; Trade Payables - Monetary  
Cash balance – Monetary; Property, plant and equipment - Non-monetary 

 

QUESTION  169 (RTP JULY 2021) 

Trade payables of CAT Ltd. include amount payable to JBB Ltd., ₹ 10,00,000 recorded at the 
prevailing exchange rate on the date of transaction, transaction recorded at US $1 = ₹ 80.00. The 
exchange rate on balance sheet date (31.03.2020) was US $1 = ₹ 85.00. You are required to 
calculate the amount of exchange difference and also explain the accounting treatment needed for 
this as per AS 11 in the books of CAT Ltd. 
 
ANSWER 
Amount of Exchange difference and its Accounting Treatment 
 

 Foreign 
Currency Rate  

₹  

Trade payables    

Initial recognition US $ 12,500 
(₹10,00,000/80)  

1 US $ = ₹ 80  10,00,000  

Rate on Balance sheet date  1 US $ = ₹ 85   

Exchange Difference loss US $ 
12,500 x ₹ (85-80)  

 62,500 

Treatment: Debit Profit and 

Loss A/c by ₹ 62,500 and Credit 

Trade Payables  

  

 
Thus, Exchange Difference on trade payables amounting ₹ 62,500 is required to be transferred to Profit and 
Loss 

tel:8334866117
http://www.caraviagarwal.com/
https://youtube.com/MissionCAwithCARaviAgarwal


 

 

1
5

6
 

 
 

QUESTION  170 (RTP JULY 2021) 

 
 

 Hygiene Ltd. had received a grant of ₹ 50 lakh in 2012 from a State Government towards 
installation of pollution control machinery on fulfilment of certain conditions. The company, 
however, failed to comply with the said conditions and consequently was required to refund the 
said amount in 2020.  
The company debited the said amount to its machinery account in 2020 on payment of the same. It 
also reworked the depreciation for the said machinery from the date of its purchase and passed 
necessary adjusting entries in the year 2020 to incorporate the retrospective impact of the same. 
State whether the treatment done by the company is correct or not.  
 

ANSWER 
 
As per the facts of the case, Hygiene Ltd. had received a grant of ₹ 50 lakh in 2012 from a State Government 
towards installation of pollution control machinery on fulfilment of certain conditions. However, the amount 
of grant has to be refunded since it failed to comply with the prescribed conditions. In such circumstances, AS 
12, “Accounting for Government Grants”, requires that the amount refundable in respect of a government 
grant related to a specific fixed asset is recorded by increasing the book value of the asset or by reducing the 
capital reserve or the deferred income balance, as appropriate, by the amount refundable. The Standard 
further makes it clear that in the first alternative, i.e., where the book value of the asset is increased, 
depreciation on the revised book value should be provided prospectively over the residual useful life of the 
asset. Accordingly, the accounting treatment given by Hygiene Ltd. of increasing the value of the plant and 
machinery is quite proper. However, the accounting treatment in respect of depreciation given by the 
company of adjustment of depreciation with retrospective effect is improper and constitutes violation of AS 
12. 
 
 

QUESTION  171 (RTP JULY 2021) 

  ABC Ltd. received two acres of land received for set up of plant. It also received ₹2 lakhs received 
for purchase of machinery of ₹ 10 lakhs. Useful life of machinery is 5 years. Depreciation on this 
machinery is to be charged on straight-line basis. How should ABC Ltd. recognize these government 
grants in its books of accounts?  
 

ANSWER: 
 
ABC Ltd. should recognize the grants in the following manner:  
 
● As per AS 12, government grants may take the form of non-monetary assets, such as land or other 
resources, given at concessional rates. In these circumstances, it is usual to account for such assets 
at their acquisition cost. Non-monetary assets given free of cost are recorded at a nominal value. 
Accordingly, land should be recognised at nominal value in the balance sheet.  
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● The standard provides option to treat the grant either as a deduction from the gross value of the 
asset or to treat it as deferred income as per provisions of the standard. Under first method, the grant 
is shown as a deduction from the gross value of the asset concerned in arriving at its book value. The 
grant is thus recognised in the profit and loss statement over the useful life of a depreciable asset by 
way of a reduced depreciation charge. Accordingly, the grant of ₹ 2 lakhs is deducted from the cost of 
the machinery. Machinery will be recognised in the books at ₹ 10 lakhs –  
 
₹ 2 lakhs = ₹ 8 lakhs and depreciation will be charged on it as follows:  
₹ 8 lakhs/ 5 years = ₹ 1.60 lakhs per year.  
 
Under the second method, grants related to depreciable assets are treated as deferred income which 
is recognised in the profit and loss statement on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of 
the asset. Such allocation to income is usually made over the periods and in the proportions in which 
depreciation on related assets is charged. ₹ 2 lakhs should be recognised as deferred income and 
will be transferred to profit and loss over the useful life of the asset. In this case, ₹ 40,000 [₹ 2 lakhs / 
5 years] should be credited to profit and loss each year over the period of 5 years. 
 
 

QUESTION  172 (RTP JULY 2021) 

 

 Paridhi Electronics Ltd. invested in the shares of Dhansukh Ltd. on 1st May 2020 at a cost of ₹ 
10,00,000. Three fourth of these investments were current investments and  
the remaining investments were intended to be held for more than a year. The published accounts 
of Dhansukh Ltd. received in January, 2021 reveals that the company has incurred cash losses with 
decline in market share and investment of Paridhi Electronics Ltd. may not fetch more than 
7,50,000. The reduction in value is apparent to be non-temporary.  
You are required to explain how you will deal with the above in the financial statements of the 
Paridhi Electronics Ltd. as on 31.3.21 with reference to AS 13?  

 

 

ANSWER: 

As per AS 13, “Accounting for Investments”, carrying amount for current investments is the lower of cost 

and fair value. But long term investments should be carried in the financial statements at cost. However, 

provision for diminution shall be made to recognize a decline, other than temporary, in the value of the 

investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually. The standard also 

states that indicators of the value of an investment are obtained by reference to its market value, the 

investee's assets and results and the expected cash flows from the investment Paridhi Ltd. made three 

fourth of ₹ 10,00,000 ie. ₹7,50,000 as current investment and remaining ₹ 2,50,000 as long term. The facts 

of the case given in the question clearly suggest that the provision for diminution should be made to reduce 

the carrying amount of shares for both categories of shares to bring them to market value. Hence the 

carrying value of investments will be shown at afmount of ₹ 7,50,000 in the financial statements for the year 

ended 31st March, 2021 and charge the difference of loss of ₹ 2,50,000 to profit and loss account. 
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QUESTION  173 (RTP JULY 2021) 

When capitalisation of borrowing cost should cease as per Accounting Standard 16? Explain in 

brief.  

ANSWER: 
Capitalization of borrowing costs should cease when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the 
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. An asset is normally ready for its intended use or 
sale when its physical construction or production is complete even though routine administrative work might 
still continue. If minor modifications such as the decoration of a property to the user’s specification, are all 
that are outstanding, this indicates that substantially all the activities are complete. When the construction of 
a qualifying asset is completed in parts and a completed part is capable of being used while construction 
continues for the other parts, capitalization of borrowing costs in relation to a part should cease when 
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that part for its intended use or sale are complete. 
 

QUESTION  174 (RTP JULY 2021) 

Shan Builders Limited has borrowed a sum of US $ 10,00,000 at the beginning of Financial Year 

2019-20 for its residential project at 4 %. The interest is payable at the end of the Financial Year. At 

the time of availment, exchange rate was ₹ 56 per US $ and the rate as on 31st March, 2020 ₹ 62 

per US $. If Shan Builders Limited had borrowed the loan in India in Indian Rupee equivalent, the 

pricing of loan would have been 10.50%. You are required to compute Borrowing Cost and 

exchange difference for the year ending 31st March, 2020 as per applicable Accounting Standards. 

ANSWER: 

 
(i) Interest for the period 2019-20  

= US $ 10 lakhs x 4% × ₹ 62 per US $ = ₹ 24.80 lakhs  
 
 
(ii) Increase in the liability towards the principal amount  

= US $ 10 lakhs × ₹ (62 - 56) = ₹ 60 lakhs  
 
 
(iii) Interest that would have resulted if the loan was taken in Indian currency  

= US $ 10 lakhs × ₹ 56 x 10.5% = ₹ 58.80 lakhs  
 
 
(iv) Difference between interest on local currency borrowing and foreign currency borrowing = ₹ 58.80 
lakhs - ₹ 24.80 lakhs = ₹ 34 lakhs.  

 

Therefore, out of ₹ 60 lakhs increase in the liability towards principal amount, only ₹ 34 lakhs will be 

considered as the borrowing cost. Thus, total borrowing cost would be ₹ 58.80 lakhs being the 
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aggregate of interest of ₹ 24.80 lakhs on foreign currency borrowings plus the exchange difference 

to the extent of difference between interest on local currency borrowing and interest on foreign 

currency borrowing of ₹ 34 lakhs. Hence, ₹ 58.80 lakhs would be considered as the borrowing cost 

to be accounted for as per AS 16 “Borrowing Costs” and the remaining ₹ 26 lakhs (60 - 34) would 

be considered as the exchange difference to be accounted for as per AS 11 “The Effects of 

Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. 

 

 

QUESTION  175 (RTP NOV 2019) 

A Company has an inter-segment transfer pricing policy of charging at cost less 5%. The market 

prices are generally 20% above cost.  

You are required to examine whether the policy adopted by the company is correct or not? 

ANSWER: 

AS 17 ‘Segment Reporting’ requires that inter-segment transfers should be measured on the basis that the 

enterprise actually used to price these transfers. The basis of pricing inter-segment transfers and any change 

therein should be disclosed in the financial statements. Hence, the enterprise can have its own policy for 

pricing inter-segment transfers and hence, inter-segment transfers may be based on cost, below cost or 

market price. However, whichever policy is followed, the same should be disclosed and applied consistently. 

Therefore, in the given case inter-segment transfer pricing policy adopted by the company is correct if 

followed consistently. 

 

QUESTION  176 (RTP NOV 2019) 

The Accountant of Sohna Ltd. provides the following information for the year ended 31-03-2019:  

Particulars  ₹  

Accounting Profit  7,50,000  

Book Profit as per MAT  4,37,500  

Profit as per Income Tax Act  90,000  

Tax rate  20%  

MAT rate  7.50%  

 

You are required to calculate the deferred tax asset/ liability as per AS 22 and amount of tax to be 

debited to the Profit and Loss Account for the year. 
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ANSWER: 

Tax as per accounting profit 7,50,000  20% = ₹ 1,50,000  
Tax as per Income-tax Profit 90,000  20% = ₹ 18,000  
Tax as per MAT 4,37,500  7.50% = ₹ 32,812.50  
 
Tax expense= Current Tax + Deferred Tax  
₹ 1,50,000 = ₹ 18,000+ Deferred tax  
 
Therefore, Deferred Tax liability as on 31-03-2019  
= ₹ 1,50,000 – ₹ 18,000 = ₹ 1,32,000  
 
Amount of tax to be debited in Profit and Loss account for the year 31-03-2019  
 
Current Tax + Deferred Tax liability + Excess of MAT over current tax  
= ₹ 18,000 + ₹ 1,32,000 + ₹ 14,812.50 (32,812.50 – 18,000)  
= ₹ 1,64,812.50 

QUESTION  177 (RTP MAY 2019) 

(A) PK Ltd. has identified business segment as its primary reporting format. It has identified India, 

USA and UK as three geographical segments. It sells its products in the Indian market, which 

constitutes 70 percent of the Company’s sales. 25 per cent  is sold in USA and the balance is sold in 

UK. Is PK Ltd. as part of its geographical secondary segment information, required to disclose 

segment revenue from export sales, where such sales are not significant?  

(B) Is it permissible not to recognize deferred tax liability on the ground that the Company expects 

that there will be losses both for accounting and tax purposes in near future? You are required to 

give advise to the company 

ANSWER: 

a) As per AS 17 if primary format of an enterprise for reporting segment information is business 
segments, it should also report segment revenue from external customers by geographical area 
based on the geographical location of its customers, for each geographical segment whose revenue 
from sales to external customers is 10 per cent or more of enterprise revenue. Accordingly, for the 
purposes of disclosing secondary segment information, PK Ltd. is not required to disclose segment 
revenue from export sales to UK, since that segment does not meet the 10 per cent or more of 
enterprise revenue threshold. However, other secondary segment information as per AS 17 should be 
disclosed in respect of this segment if the thresholds prescribed in the AS 17 are met.  
 
(b) The Company should provide for deferred tax liability on the timing differences irrespective for the 

fact that these timing differences will reverse in the period in which the Company expects to be in loss 

both from the accounting as well as tax point of view. It may, however, be added that the deferred tax 

liability recognized at the balance sheet date will give rise to future taxable income at the time of 

reversal thereof. 
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QUESTION  178 (RTP MAY 2018) 

(a) A Company has an inter-segment transfer pricing policy of charging at cost less 5%. The market 
prices are generally 20% above cost.  
You are required to examine whether the policy adopted by the company is correct or not?  
 
 
 (B) Rama Ltd., has provided the following information: ₹ 
 

Depreciation as per accounting records  = 2,00,000  

Depreciation as per income tax records  = 5,00,000  

Unamortized preliminary expenses as per 
tax record  

= 30,000  

 

ANSWER: 

(A) AS 17 ‘Segment Reporting’ requires that inter-segment transfers should be measured on the basis that the 

enterprise actually used to price these transfers. The basis of pricing inter-segment transfers and any change 

therein should be disclosed in the financial statements. Hence, the enterprise can have its own policy for 

pricing inter-segment transfers and hence, inter-segment transfers may be based on cost, below cost or 

market price. However, whichever policy is followed, the same should be disclosed and applied consistently. 

Therefore, in the given case inter-segment transfer pricing policy adopted by the company is correct if 

followed consistently 

(B) Table showing calculation of deferred tax asset / liability 

Particulars  Amount  Timing 
differences  

Deferred tax  Amount @ 
50%  

₹   ₹    

Excess depreciation as per tax 
records (₹ 5,00,000 – ₹ 
2,00,000)  

3,00,000  Timing  Deferred tax 
liability  

1,50,000  

Unamortized preliminary 
expenses as per tax records  

30,000  Timing  Deferred tax 
asset  

(15,000)  

Net deferred tax liability     1,35,000 

 

QUESTION  179 (RTP NOV 2018) 

Calculate the segment results of a manufacturing organization from the following information: 

Segments  A  B  C  Total  

Directly attributed 
revenue  

5,00,000  3,00,000  1,00,000  9,00,000  

Enterprise revenue    1,10,000 
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(allocated in 5 : 4 : 2 
basis)  

Revenue from 
transactions with other 
segments  

    

Transaction from B  1,00,000   50,000  1,50,000  

Transaction from C  10,000  50,000   60,000 

Transaction from A  25,000  1,00,000   1,25,000 

Operating expenses  3,00,000  1,50,000  75,000  5,25,000  

Enterprise expenses 
(allocated in 5 : 4 : 2 
basis)  

   77,000 

Expenses on 
transactions with other 
segments  

    

Transaction from B  75,000   30,000   

Transaction from C  6,000  40,000   

Transaction from A   18,000 82,000   
 

ANSWER: 

Segments  A  B  C  Total  

Directly attributed 
revenue  

5,00,000  3,00,000  1,00,000  9,00,000  

Enterprise revenue 
(allocated in 5 : 4 : 2 
basis)  

50,000 40,000 20,000 1,10,000 

Revenue from 
transactions with other 
segments  

    

Transaction from B  1,00,000   50,000  1,50,000  

Transaction from C  10,000  50,000   60,000 

Transaction from A  25,000  1,00,000   1,25,000 

Total segment revenue 
as per AS 17 (A)  
 

6,60,000 4,15,000 2,70,000 13,45,000 

Operating expenses  3,00,000  1,50,000  75,000  5,25,000  

Enterprise expenses 
(allocated in 5 : 4 : 2 
basis)  

   77,000 

Expenses on transactions 
with other segments  
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Transaction from B  75,000   30,000   

Transaction from C  6,000  40,000   

Transaction from A   18,000 82,000   

Total segment expenses 
as per AS 17 (B)  

4,16,000 2,36,000 2,01,000 8,53,000 

Segment result (A-B)  2,44,000 1,79,000 69,000 4,92,000 

 

 

QUESTION  180 (PAST PAPER JAN 21) 

State whether the following statements are 'True' or 'False'. Also give reason for your answer.  
 
(1) As per the provisions of AS-5, extraordinary items should not be disclosed in the statement of 
profit and loss as a part of net profit or loss for the period.  
 
(2) As per the provisions of AS-12, government grants in the nature of promoters' contribution 
which become refundable should be reduced from the capital reserve.  
 
(3) As per the provisions of AS-2, inventories should be valued at the lower of cost and selling 
price.  
 
(4) As per the provisions of AS-13, a current investment is an investment, that by its nature, is 
readily realisable and is intended to be held for not more than six months from the date on which 
such investment is made.  
 

(5) As per the provisions of AS-4, a contingency is a condition or situation, the ultimate outcome of 

which (gain or loss) will be known or determined only on the occurrence of one or more uncertain 

future events. 

ANSWER 

(1) False: The nature and the amount of each extraordinary item should be separately disclosed in 
the statement of profit and loss in a manner that its impact on current profit or loss can be perceived.  
 
(2) True: When grants in the nature of promoters’ contribution becomes refundable, in part or in full to 
the government on non-fulfillment of some specified conditions, the relevant amount refundable to the 
government is reduced from the capital reserve.  
 
(3) False: Inventories should be valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (not selling price) 
as per AS 2.  
 
(4) False: A current investment is an investment that is by its nature readily realizable and is intended 
to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investment is made.  
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(5) False: A contingency is a condition or situation, the ultimate outcome of which, gain or loss, will 

be known or determined only on the occurrence, or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future 

events. 

 

QUESTION  181 (PAST PAPER JAN 21) 

The financial statements of PQ Ltd. for the year 2017-18 approved by the Board of Directors on 
15th July, 2018. The following information was provided :  
 
(i) A suit against the company's advertisement was filed by a party on 20th April, 2018, claiming 
damages of ₹ 25 lakhs.  
 

(ii) The terms and conditions for acquisition of business of another company have been decided by 

March, 2018. But the financial resources were arranged in April, 2018 and amount invested was ₹ 

50 lakhs 

(iii) Theft of cash of ₹ 5 lakhs by the cashier on 31st March, 2018 but was detected on 16th July, 
2018.  
 
(iv) Company sent a proposal to sell an immovable property for ₹ 40 lakhs in March, 2018. The 
book value of the property was ₹ 30 lakhs on 31st March, 2018. However, the deed was registered 
on 15th April, 2018.  
 
(v) A, major fire has damaged the assets in a factory on 5th April, 2018. However, the assets are 
fully insured.  
 

With reference to AS-4 "Contingencies and events occurring after the balance sheet date", state 

whether the above mentioned events will be treated as contingencies, adjusting events or non-

adjusting events occurring after the balance sheet date. 

 

ANSWER 

(i) Suit filed against the company is a contingent liability but it was not existing as on balance sheet 
date as the suit was filed on 20th April after the balance Sheet date. As per AS 4, 'Contingencies' used 
in the Standard is restricted to conditions or situations at the balance sheet date, the financial effect 
of which is to be determined by future events which may or may not occur. Hence, it will have no 
effect on financial statements and will be a non-adjusting event.  
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(ii) In the given case, terms and conditions for acquisition of business were finalised and carried out 
before the closure of the books of accounts but transaction for payment of financial resources was 
effected in April, 2018. This is clearly an event occuring after the balance sheet date. Hence, 
necessary adjustment to assets and liabilities for acquisition of business is necessary in the financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March 2018.  
 
(iii) Only those significant events which occur between the balance sheet date and the date on which 
the financial statements are approved, may indicate the need for adjustment to assets and liabilities 
existing on the balance sheet date or may require disclosure. In the given case, theft of cash was 
detected on 16th July, 18 after approval of financial statements by the Board of Directors, hence no 
treatment is required.  
 

(iv) Adjustments to assets and liabilities are not appropriate for events occurring after the balance 
sheet date, if such events do not relate to conditions existing at the balance sheet date. In the given 
case, sale of immovable property was under proposal stage (negotiations also not started) on the 
balance sheet date. Therefore, no adjustment to assets for sale of immovable property is required in 
the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018.  
 

(v) The condition of fire occurrence was not existing on the balance sheet date. Only the disclosure 

regarding event of fire and loss being completely insured may be given in the report of approving 

authority. 

 

QUESTION  182 (PAST PAPER JAN 21) 

Explain how financial capital is maintained at historical cost? 
Kishore started a business on 1st April, 2019 with ₹ 15,00,000 represented by 75,000 units of ₹20 
each. During the financial year ending on 31st March, 2020, he sold the entire stock for ₹ 30 each. 
In order to maintain the capital intact, calculate the maximum amount, which can be withdrawn by 
Kishore in the year 2019-20 if Financial Capital is maintained at historical cost.  
 

 

ANSWER 

Financial capital maintenance at historical cost: Under this convention, opening and  closing assets 
are stated at respective historical costs to ascertain opening and closing equity. If retained profit is 
greater than or equals to zero, the capital is said to be maintained at historical costs. This means the 
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business will have enough funds to replace its assets at historical costs. This is quite right as long as 
prices do not rise. Maximum amount withdrawn by Kishore in year 2019-20 if Financial capital is 
maintained at historical cost 
 
 

 
 

QUESTION  183 (PAST PAPER NOV 20) 

 
 A Ltd. had following assets. Calculate depreciation for the year ended 31st March, 2020 for each 
asset as per AS 10 (Revised):  
 
(i) Machinery purchased for ₹ 10 lakhs on 1st April, 2015 and residual value after useful life of 5 
years, based on 2015 prices is ₹ 10 lakhs.  
 
(ii) Land for ₹ 50 lakhs.  
 
(iii) A Machinery is constructed for ₹ 5,00,000 for its own use (useful life is 10 years). Construction 
is completed on 1st April, 2019, but the company does not begin using the machine until 31st 
March, 2020.  
 
(iv) Machinery purchased on 1st April.2017 for ₹ 50,000 with useful life of 5 years and residual  
value is NIL. On 1st April, 2019, management decided to use this asset for further 2 years only. 
 
ANSWER 
Computation of amount of depreciation as per AS 10 
  ₹ 

(i)  Machinery purchased on 1/4/15 for ₹ 10 lakhs  

(having residual value of ₹ 10 lakhs)  

Reason: The company considers that the residual value, based on 

prices prevailing at the balance sheet date, will equal the cost. 

Therefore, there is no depreciable amount and depreciation is 

correctly zero.  

Nil  

(ii)  Land (50 lakhs) (considered freehold)  

Reason: Land has an unlimited useful life and therefore, it is not 

depreciated.  

Nil  

(iii)  Machinery constructed for own use (₹ 5,00,000/10)  

Reason: The entity should begin charging depreciation from the date 

50,000  
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the machine is ready for use i.e. 1st April,2019. The fact that the 

machine was not used for a period after it was ready to be used is not 

relevant in considering when to begin charging depreciation.  

(iv)  Machinery having revised useful life  

Reason: The entity has charged depreciation using the straight-line 

method at ₹ 10,000 per annum i.e (50,000/5 years). On 1st April,2019 

the   

asset's net book value is [50,000 – (10,000 x 2)] i.e. ₹ 30,000. The 

remaining useful life is 2 years as per revised estimate. The company 

should amend the annual provision for depreciation to charge the 

unamortized cost over the revised remaining life of 2 years. 

Consequently, it should charge depreciation for the next 2 years at ₹ 

15,000 per annum i.e. (30,000 / 2 years).  

15,000 

 

 

QUESTION  184 (PAST PAPER NOV 20) 

 
 On 1st April, 2016, Mac Ltd. received a Government Grant of ₹ 60 lakhs for acquisition of 
machinery costing ₹ 300 lakhs. The grant was credited to the cost of the asset. The estimated 
useful life of the machinery is 10 years. The machinery is depreciated @ 10% on WDV basis. The 
company had to refund the grant in June 2019 due to non-compliance of certain conditions.  
 
 
How the refund of the grant is dealt with in the books of Mac Ltd. assuming that the company did 
not charge any depreciation for the year 2019-20.  
 
Pass necessary Journal Entries for the year 2019-20. 
 
 
 
ANSWER 
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Depreciation @10% on the revised book value amounting to ₹ 232.044 lakhs is to be provided 
prospectively over the residual useful life of the machinery.  
*considered refund of grant at beginning of June month and depreciation for two months already 
charged. Alternative answer considering otherwise also possible.  
 
Journal Entries 
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QUESTION  185 (PAST PAPER NOV 20) 

On 15th April, 2019 RBM Ltd. obtained a Term Loan from the Bank for ₹ 320 lakhs to be utilized as 
under: 

₹ (in lakhs)   

Construction for factory shed  240  

Purchase of Machinery  30  

Working capital  24  

Purchase of Vehicles  12  

Advance for tools/cranes etc.  8  

Purchase of technical know how  6  

 
In March, 2020 construction of shed was completed and machinery was installed. Total interest 
charged by the bank for the year ending 31st March, 2020 was ₹ 40 lakhs.  
In the context of provisions of AS 16 'Borrowing Costs', show the treatment of interest and also 
explain the nature of Assets.  
 
ANSWER 
 
As per AS 16 A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use or sale. Other investments and those inventories that are routinely 
manufactured or otherwise produced in large quantities on a repetitive basis over a short period of 
time, are not qualifying assets. Assets that are ready for their intended use or sale when acquired 
also are not qualifying assets. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset should be capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. 
Other borrowing costs should be recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.  
Construction of factory shed amounting ₹ 240 lakhs is qualifying asset in the given case. The interest 
for this amount during the year will be added to the cost of factory shed. All others (purchase of 
machinery, vehicles and technical know how, working capital, advance for tools/cranes) are non-
qualifying assets and related borrowing cost will be charged to Profit and Loss statement.  
Qualifying Asset as per AS 16 (construction of a shed) = ₹ 240 lakhs  
Borrowing cost to be capitalized = ₹ 40 lakhs x 240/320 = ₹ 30 lakhs  
Interest to be debited to Profit or Loss account: ₹ (40 – 30) = ₹ 10 lakhs.  
Note: Assumed that construction of factory shed completed on 31st March, 2020. 
 
 

QUESTION  186 (MTP MAY 18) 

 The Board of Directors of New Graphics Ltd. in its Board Meeting held on 18th April, 2017, 
considered and approved the Audited Financial results along with Auditors Report for the Financial 
Year ended 31st March, 2017 and recommended a dividend of ₹ 2 per equity share (on 2 crore fully 
paid up equity shares of ₹ 10 each) for the year ended 31st March, 2017 and if approved by the 
members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the company on 18th June, 2017, the 
same will be paid to all the eligible shareholders.  
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Discuss on the accounting treatment and presentation of the said proposed dividend in the 

annual accounts of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2017 as per the applicable 

Accounting Standard and other Statutory Requirements. 

ANSWER 

 As per the amendment in AS 4 “Contingencies and Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date” 
vide Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendments Rules, 2016 dated 30th March, 2016, the 
events which take place after the balance sheet date, are sometimes reflected in the financial 
statements because of statutory requirements or because of their special nature.  
 
However, dividends declared after the balance sheet date but before approval of financial 
statements are not recognized as a liability at the balance sheet date because no statutory obligation 
exists at that time. Hence such dividends are disclosed in the notes to financial statements.  

 

Provision for proposed dividends is not required to be made as per the amendment in AS 4. Such 

proposed dividends are to be disclosed in the notes to financial statements. Accordingly, the 

dividend of ₹ 4 crores recommended by New Graphics Ltd. in its Board meeting on 18th April, 2017 

shall not be accounted for in the books for the year 2016-17 irrespective of the fact that it pertains 

to the year 2016-17 and will be paid after approval in the Annual General Meeting of the 

members/shareholders. 

 
 

QUESTION  187 (MTP MAY 18) 

 Gamma Limited is working on different projects which are likely to be completed within 3 years 
period. It recognizes revenue from these contracts on percentage of completion method for 
financial statements during 2014-2015, 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 for ₹ 11,00,000, ₹ 16,00,000 and 
₹ 21,00,000 respectively. However, for Income-tax purpose, it has adopted the completed contract 
method under which it has recognized revenue of ₹ 7,00,000, ₹ 18,00,000 and ₹ 23,00,000 for the 
years 2014-2015, 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 respectively. Income-tax rate is 35%.  
You are required to compute the amount of deferred tax asset/liability for the years 2014-2015, 
2015-2016 and 2016-2017. Also describe how this amount of deferred tax asset/liability will be 
disclosed in the balance sheet of Omega Limited as per provisions of AS 22. 
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ANSWER 
 
 Gamma Limited  
Calculation of Deferred Tax Asset/Liability 
 

 
 

 As per AS 22, deferred tax assets and liabilities should be distinguished from assets and liabilities 
representing current tax for the period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities should be disclosed under a 
separate heading in the balance sheet of the enterprise, separately from current assets and current 
liabilities. The break-up of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities into major components of 
the respective balances should be disclosed in the notes to accounts. 
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Chapter 4 Financial Statements of 

Companies 

 
QUESTION 1 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

In the financial statements of the financial year 20X1-20X2, Alpha Ltd. Has mentioned in the 

notes to accounts that during financial year, 24,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each were issued as 

fully paid bonus shares. However, the source from which these bonus shares were issued has 

not been disclosed. Is such non-disclosure a violation of the Schedule III to the Companies Act? 

Comment. 

Answer 

Schedule III has come into force for the Balance Sheet and Profit  and  Loss  Account prepared for 
the financial year commencing on or after 1st April, 20X1. As per Part I of the Schedule III, a 
company should, inter alia, disclose in notes to accounts for the period of 5 years immediately 
preceding the balance sheet date (31st March, 20X2 in the instant case) the aggregate number and 
class of shares allotted as fully paid-up bonus shares. Schedule III does not require a company to 
disclose the source from which bonus shares have been issued. Therefore, non- disclosure of 
source from which bonus shares have been issued does not violate the Schedule III to the 
Companies Act. 

 

QUESTION 2 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

The management of Loyal Ltd. contends that the work in process is not valued since  it is difficult 

to ascertain the same in view of the multiple processes involved. They opine that the value of 

opening and closing work in process would be more or less  the same. Accordingly, the 

management had not separately disclosed work  in process in its financial statements. Comment 

in line with Schedule III. 

Answer 
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Schedule III to the companies Act  does not require that the amounts of WIP  at  the beginning 

and at the end of the accounting period to be disclosed in the statement of profit and loss. Only 

changes in inventories of WIP need to be disclosed in the statement of  profit and loss. Non-

disclosure of  such change in  the statement of profit and loss by the company may not amount 

to violation of ScheduleIIIifthedifferencesbetweenopeningandclosingWIParenotmaterial. 

 

QUESTION 3 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

Futura Ltd. had the following items under the head “Reserves and Surplus” in the 

Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 20X1: 

                             Amount Rs.in lakhs 

 
Securities Premium Account 80 

Capital Reserve 60 

General Reserve 90 
The company had an accumulated loss of Rs.250 lakhs on the  same  date, which it  has disclosed 

under the head “Statement of Profit and Loss” as asset in its Balance Sheet. Comment on 

accuracy of this treatment in line with Schedule III to the Companies Act,2013. 

Answer 

Part I of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 provides that debit balance of Statement of 

Profit and Loss (after all allocations and appropriations) should be shown as a negative figure 

under the head ‘Surplus’. Similarly, the balance of ‘Reserves and Surplus’, after adjusting 

negative balance of surplus, should be shown under the head ‘Reserves and Surplus’ even if the 

resulting figure is in the negative. In this case, the debit balance of profit and loss i.e. Rs.250 lakhs 

exceeds the total of all the reserves i.e. Rs.230 lakhs. Therefore, balance of ‘Reserves and 

Surplus’ after adjusting debit balance of profit and loss is negative by Rs.20 lakhs, which should 

be disclosed on the face of the balance sheet. Thus the treatment done by the company is 

incorrect 

 

QUESTION 4 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

Sumedha Ltd. took a loan from bank for Rs.10,00,000 to be settled within 5 years in   10 equal 

half yearly instalments with interest. First instalment is due on 30.09.20X1  of Rs.1,00,000. 
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Determine how the loan will be classified in preparation of Financial Statements of Sumedha 

Ltd. for the year ended 31stMarch, 20X1 according to Schedule III. 

Answer 

As per Schedule III, a liability should be classified as current when it satisfies any    of the following 
criteria: 

(i) It is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle; 

(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

(iii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 

(iv) the company does not have an unconditional right to  defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting date. 

In the given case, instalments due on 30.09.20X1 and 31.03.20X2 will be shown under the head 
‘other current liabilities’ as per criteria(c). 

Therefore, in the balance sheet as on 31.3.20X1, Rs.8,00,000 (Rs.1,00,000 x 8 instalments) will be 
shown under the heading ‘Long term Borrowings’ and 2,00,000 (Rs.1,00,000 x 2 instalments) will be 
shown under the heading ‘Other Current Liabilities’ as current maturities of loan from bank. 

 

QUESTION  5(STUDY MATERIAL) 

Mudra Ltd. gives the following information the year ended 31st March, 20X1:  

Gross profit  40,25,365  

Subsidies received from Govt.  2,73,925  

Administrative, Selling and distribution expenses  8,22,542  

Directors’ fees  1,34,780  

Interest on debentures  31,240  

Managerial remuneration  2,85,350  

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment 
(PPE)  

5,22,543  

Provision for Taxation  12,42,500  

Transfer to General Reserve  4,00,000  

Transfer to Investment Revaluation Reserve  12,500  

 

Depreciation on PPE as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 was ₹ 5,75,345. You are 

required to calculate the maximum limits of the managerial remuneration as per Companies Act, 

2013. 
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ANSWER 5 

 Calculation of net profit u/s 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

Maximum Managerial remuneration under Companies Act, 2013= 11% of ₹ 27,35,383= ₹ 3,00,892 

 

QUESTION 6 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

The following is the Draft Profit &Loss A/c of Mudra Ltd., the year  ended 31st  

March,20X1: 

  Rs.   Rs. 

To Administrative, Selling and  By Balance b/d 5,72,350 

 
” 

distribution expense  
Directors fees 

8,22,542 
1,34,780 

“ Balance from 
Trading A/c 

 
40,25,365 

” 
” 

Interest on
 debentures 
Managerial remuneration 

31,240 
2,85,350 

“ Subsidies received 
from Govt. 

2,73,925 

” Depreciation on
 fixed 
assets 

5,22,543    

” Provision for Taxation 12,42,500    

” General Reserve 4,00,000    

” Investment Revaluation     

 Reserve 12,500    

” Balance c/d 14,20,185    

  48,71,640   48,71,640 
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Depreciation on fixed assets as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 wasRs.5,75,345. You 

are required to calculate the maximum limits of the managerial remuneration as per Companies 

Act, 2013. 

Answer 

Calculation of net profit u/s 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 Rs. Rs. 

Balance from Trading A/c  40,25,365 

Add: Subsidies received from Government  2,73,925 

 
Less:  Administrative, selling and distribution 

expenses 

 
8,22,542 

42,99,290 

Director’s fees 1,34,780  

Interest on debentures 31,240  

Depreciation on fixed assets as per Schedule II 5,75,345 (15,63,907) 

Profit u/s 198  27,35,383 

Maximum Managerial remuneration under Companies Act, 2013= 11% of Rs. 
27,35,383= Rs.3,00,892 

 

QUESTION 6 (STUDY MATERIAL) (RTP JULY 21) 

The following extract of Balance Sheet of X Ltd. was obtained: 

Balance Sheet (Extract) as on 31st March, 20X1 

Liabilities Rs. 

Authorised capital:  

20,000, 14% preference shares of Rs.100 20,00,000 

2,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.100 each 2,00,00,000 
2,20,00,000 

Issued and subscribed capital:  

15,000, 14% preference shares of Rs.100 each fully paid 15,00,000 

1,20,000 Equity shares of Rs.100 each, Rs.80 paid-up 96,00,000 

Share suspense account 20,00,000 

Reserves and surplus:  

Capital reserves (Rs.1,50,000 is revaluation reserve) 1,95,000 

Securities premium 50,000 
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Secured loans:  

15% Debentures 65,00,000 

Unsecured loans:  

Public deposits 3,70,000 

Cash credit loan from SBI (short term) 4,65,000 

Current Liabilities:  

Trade Payables 3,45,000 

Assets:  

Investment in shares, debentures, etc. 75,00,000 

Profit and Loss account (Dr. balance) 15,25,000 

Share suspense account represents application money received on shares, the 

allotment of which is not yet made. 

You are required to compute effective capital as per the provisions of Schedule V. Would your 

answer differ if X Ltd. is an investment company? 

Answer 

Computation of effective capital: 

 Where X Ltd. Is a 
non-investment 

company 
Rs. 

Where X Ltd. is 
an investment 

company 
Rs. 

Paid-up share capital —   

15,000, 14% Preference shares 15,00,000 15,00,000 

1,20,000 Equity shares 96,00,000 96,00,000 

Capital reserves (1,95,000 – 1,50,000) 45,000 45,000 

Securities premium 50,000 50,000 

15% Debentures 65,00,000 65,00,000 

Public Deposits 3,70,000 3,70,000 

(A) 1,80,65,000 1,80,65,000 

Investments 75,00,000 — 

Profit and Loss account (Dr. balance) 15,25,000 15,25,000 

(B) 90,25,000   15,25,000 

Effective capital (A–B) 90,40,000 1,65,40,000 
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QUESTION 7 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

Kumar Ltd., a non-investment company has been incurring losses for the past few 

years. The company provides the following information for the current year: 

 (Rs. in 
lakhs) 

Paid up equity share capital 120 

Paid up Preference share capital 20 

Reserves (including Revaluation reserve Rs.10lakhs) 150 

Securities premium 40 

Long term loans 40 

Deposits repayable after one year 20 

Application money pending allotment 720 

 

Accumulated losses not written off 20 

Investments 180 

 

Kumar Ltd. has only  one whole-time director, Mr. X. You are required to calculate the amount of 

maximum remuneration that can be paid to him if no special resolution is passed at the general 

meeting of the company in respect of payment of remuneration for a period not exceeding three 

years. 

Answer 

Calculation of effective capital and maximum amount of monthly remuneration 

 (Rs. in lakhs) 

Paid up equity share capital 120 

Paid up Preference share capital 20 

Reserve excluding Revaluation reserve (150- 10) 140 

Securities premium 40 

Long term loans 40 

Deposits repayable after one year 20 
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 380 

Less: Accumulated losses not written off (20) 

Investments (180) 

Effective capital for the purpose of managerial remuneration 180 

Since Kumar Ltd. is incurring losses and no special resolution has been passed by the company for 
payment of remuneration, managerial remuneration will be calculated on the basis of effective 
capital of the company, therefore maximum remuneration payable to the Managing Director should 
be @ Rs.60,00,000 per annum. 
 

QUESTION 9 (STUDY MATERIAL) (RTP JULY 21) 

Due to inadequacy of profits during the year ended 31st March, 20X2, XYZ Ltd. proposes to declare 

10% dividend out of general reserves. From the following particulars, ascertain the amount that 

can be utilised from general reserves, according to the Companies (Declaration of dividend out of 

Reserves) Rules, 2014: 

 

 Rs. 

17,500 9% Preference shares of Rs.100 each, fully paid up 17,50,000 

8,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up 80,00,000 

General Reserves as on 1.4.20X1 25,00,000 

Capital Reserves as on 1.4.20X1 3,00,000 

Revaluation Reserves as on 1.4.20X1 3,50,000 

Net profit for the year ended 31st March, 20X2 3,00,000 

Average rate of dividend during the last three years has been 12%.  

Answer 

Amount that can be drawn from reserves for 10% 
dividend 

  

10% dividend on Rs.80,00,000  Rs.8,00,000 

Profits available   

Current year profit 3,00,000  

Less: Preference dividend (1,57,500)  
(1,42,500) 

Amount which can be utilised from reserves   6,57,500 

Conditions as per Companies (Declaration of dividend out of Reserves)  
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Rules, 20X1: 

Condition I 

Since 10% is lower than the average rate of dividend (12%), 10% dividend can be declared. 

Condition II 

Maximum amount that can be drawn from the accumulated profits and reserves should not exceed 
10% of paid up  capital plus free reserves ie. Rs.12,25,000 [10%  
of(80,00,000+17,50,000+25,00,000)] 

Condition III 

The balance of reserves after drawl Rs.18,42,500 (Rs.25,00,000 - Rs.6,57,500) should not fall below 
15 % of its paid up capital ie. Rs.14,62,500 (15% of Rs.97,50,000] 

Since all the three conditions are satisfied, the company can withdraw Rs.6,57,500 from accumulated 
reserves (as per Declaration and Payment of Dividend Rules, 2014.) 

 

 

QUESTION 10 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

X Ltd., a domestic company, has distributed on 5th April 20X1, dividend of  Rs.230  

lakhtoitsshareholders.ComputetheDividendDistributiontaxpayablebyXLtd. 

Answer 

Calculation of corporate dividend tax 

 

Particulars Rs. in lakh 

Dividend distributed by X Ltd. 230 

Add: Increase for the purpose of grossing up of dividend 
 

 
40.59 

Gross dividend 270.59 

Dividend distribution tax @ 15% [15% of Rs.270.59lakh] 40.59 

Add: Surcharge@12% 4.88 

 45.47 

Add: Education cess@2% and SHEC@1% 1.36 

Dividend Distribution tax 46.83 
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QUESTION 11 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

On 31stMarch, 20X1 X Ltd. declared dividend amounting to Rs.425 lacs for the year 20XX-20X1. 

The Dividend Distribution tax liability (15% of Corporate dividend tax including surcharge @ 12%, 

Education Cess @ 2% and SHEC @ 1% i.e. 17.304%) arises as per Income-tax Act,1961. In this case, 

calculate the  grossing-up  of  dividend and separately disclose the charge for DDT in the ‘Notes to 

Accounts’ of ‘Reserves and Surplus’. 

Answer 

Calculation of grossing-up of dividend: 

 

Particulars Rs. in lacs 

Dividend distributed by X Co. 425 

Add: Increase for the purpose of grossing up of dividend 75 

 

(An Extract) 

 ‘Notes to Accounts’ of ‘Reserves and Surplus’ 

 for the year ended 31st March,20X1 

Rs.(lacs) Rs.(lacs) 

Dividend 425.00 

Dividend Distribution tax 86.52 511.52 

The Dividend Distribution tax should be disclosed separately under, 
the head ‘Other Current Liabilities’. The relevant extracts of the 
Balance Sheet of X Ltd. can be shown as follows: 

 

Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 20X1 

‘Other Current Liabilities’ Rs.(lacs) 

Dividend declared 425.00 

Declared Distribution tax 86.52 
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QUESTION 12 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

The following is the Trial Balance of Omega Limited as on 31 3.20X2: 

(Figures inRs.‘000) 

 

 Debit  Credit 

Land at cost 220 Equity Capital (Shares of Rs.10 each) 300 

Plant & Machinery at 
cost 

770 10% Debentures 200 

Trade Receivables 96 General Reserve 130 

Inventories (31.3.X2) 86 Profit & Loss A/c 72 

Bank 20 Securities Premium 40 

Adjusted Purchases 320 Sales 700 

Factory Expenses 60 Trade Payables 52 

Administration Expenses 30 Provision for Depreciation 172 

    

Selling Expenses 30 Suspense Account 4 

Debenture Interest 20   

Interim Dividend Paid 18   

 1670  1670 

 

Additional Information: 

(i) The authorised share capital of the company is 40,000 shares of Rs.10 each. 

(ii) The company on the advice of independent valuer wish to revalue the land at 
Rs.3,60,000. 

(iii) Declared final dividend @10%. 

(iv) Suspense account of Rs.4,000 represents cash received for the 
sale of  some  of the machinery on 1.4.20X1. The cost of the 
machinery was Rs.10,000 and the accumulated depreciation 
thereon being Rs.8,000. 

(v) Depreciationistobeprovidedonplantandmachineryat10%oncost. 
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You are required to prepare Omega Limited’s Balance Sheet as on 31.3.20X2 and 

Statement of Profit and Loss with notes to accounts for the year ended 31.3.20X2 as 

per Schedule III. Ignore previous years’ figures & taxation. 

Answer 

Omega Limited 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 20X2 

 

Particulars Note 
No. 

(Rs.in 000) 

Equity and Liabilities   

1. Shareholders' funds   

 a Share capital 1 300 

 b Reserves and Surplus 2 500 

2. Non-Current liabilities   

 a Long term borrowings 3 200 

3. Current liabilities   

 a Trade Payables  52 

 b Other Current Liability 4     30 

  Total  1082 

Assets  
 

 
5 

 

1. Non-current assets  

 a PPE (Property, Plant & Equipment)  

  i Tangible assets 880 

2. Current assets  

 a Inventories 86 

 b Trade receivables 96 

 c Cash and bank balances  20 

   Total 1082 

Omega Limited 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 20X2 

Particulars Notes (Rs.in 000) 

I. Revenue from operations  700 

II. Other Income 6     2 
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III Total Revenue  702 

IV Expenses:   

 Purchases  320 

 Finance costs 7 20 

 Depreciation (10% of 760 )  76 

 Other expenses 8 120 

 Total Expenses  536 

V. Profit (Loss) for the period (III – IV)  166 

Notes to accounts 

   (Rs.in 000) 

1. Share Capital   

Equity share capital 

 Authorised     

 40,000 shares of Rs.10 each    400 

 Issued & subscribed & called up     

 30,000 shares of Rs.10 each    300 

  Total   300 

2. Reserves and Surplus     

 Securities Premium Account    40 

 Revaluation reserve (360 – 220)    140 

 General reserve    130 

 Profit & loss Balance     

 Opening balance  72   

 Profit for the period  166 238  

 Less: Appropriations     

 Interim Dividend   (18)  

 Final Dividend (300 x 10%)   (30) 190 

     500 

3. Long term borrowing     

 10% Debentures    200 

4. Other Current Liability     

 Dividend    30 

5. Tangible assets     

 Land     

 Opening balance   220  

 Add: Revaluation adjustment   140  

 Closing balance    360 
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 Plant and Machinery     

 Opening balance   770  

 Less: Disposed off   (10)  

    760  

 Less: Depreciation (172-8+76)   (240)  

 Closing balance    520 

   Total  880 

6. Other Income   

 Profit on sale of machinery:   

 Sale value of machinery 4  

 Less: Book value of machinery (10-8) (2) 2 

7. Finance costs   

 Debenture interest  20 

8. Other expenses:   

 Factory expenses 60  

 Selling expenses 30  

 Administrative expenses 30 120 

QUESTION 13 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

You are required to prepare Balance sheet and statement of Profit and Loss from 

the following trial balance of Haria Chemicals Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 

20X1. 

Haria Chemicals Ltd. 

Trial Balance as at 31st March, 20X1 

 

Particulars Rs. Particulars Rs. 

Inventory 6,80,000 Equity Shares  

Furniture 2,00,000 Capital (Shares of Rs.10 
each) 

25,00,000 

Discount 40,000 11% Debentures 5,00,000 

Loan to Directors 80,000 Bank loans 6,45,000 

Advertisement 20,000 Trade payables 2,81,000 

Bad debts 35,000 Sales 42,68,000 

Commission 1,20,000 Rent received 46,000 

Purchases 23,19,000 Transfer fees 10,000 

Plant and Machinery 8,60,000 Profit & Loss account 1,39,000 

Rentals 25,000 Depreciation provision:  
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Current account 45,000 Machinery 1,46,000 

Cash 8,000   

Interest on bank loans 1,16,000   

Preliminary expenses 10,000   

Fixtures 3,00,000   

Wages 9,00,000   

Consumables 84,000 

Freehold land 15,46,000 

Tools & Equipments 2,45,000 

Goodwill 2,65,000 

Trade receivables 4,40,000 

Dealer aids 21,000 

Transit insurance 30,000 

Trade expenses 37,000 

Distribution freight 54,000 

Debenture interest 55,000 

 85,35,000 85,35,000 

Additional information: Closing Inventory on 31-3-20X1: Rs.8,23,000. 

Answer 

Haria Chemicals Ltd. 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 20X1 

Schedule Rupees as at the 
 No. end of 31st March 20X1 

(1) (2) 

Equity and Liabilities  

(1) Shareholders’ funds: 

(a) Share Capital 

 
1 

 
25,00,000 

(b) Reserves and Surplus 2 7,40,000 

(2) Non Current Liabilities 

(a) Long term borrowings 

 
3 

 
11,45,000 

(3) Current Liabilities 

(a) Trade payables 

  
2,81,000 

Total  46,66,000 
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Haria Chemicals Ltd. 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 20X1 

 

  Schedule Figures  

Revenue from operations   42,68,000  

Other income (A) 7     56,000  

 
Expenses 

  43,24,000  

Cost of materials consumed  8 23,19,000  

Change in inventory of finished goods 9 (1,43,000)  

Employee benefit expenses  10 9,00,000  

Finance cost  11 1,71,000  

Other expenses (B) 12 4,76,000  

 
Profit before tax (A – B) 

  37,23,000  
6,01,000 

Provision for tax 

Profit for the period 

    — 

6,01,000 

Notes to Accounts 

 
1. Share capital Rs. 

Authorised:  

Equity share capital of Rs.10 each 25,00,000 

Issued and Subscribed:  

Equity share capital of Rs.10 each 25,00,000 

2. Reserves and Surplus  

Balance as per last balance sheet 1,39,000 

Balance in profit and loss account 6,01,000 

 7,40,000 

3. Long term Borrowings  

11% Debentures 5,00,000 

Bank loans (assumed long-term)   6,45,000 

 
 
 

11,45,000 

4. Tangible Assets  
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Freehold land 

Gross block 

15,46,000 

Depreciation Net Block 

15,46,000 

Furniture 2,00,000  2,00,000 

Fixtures 3,00,000  3,00,000 

Plant & Machinery 8,60,000 1,46,000 7,14,000 

Tools & Equipment   2,45,000  2,45,000 

Total 31,51,000 1,46,000 30,05,000 

5. Cash and bank balances 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Current account balance 

 

 
45,000 

Cash 8,000 

Other bank balances 
 
6. Short-term loans and Advances 

 Nil53,

000 

Loan to directors 80,000 

7. Other Income 

Rent received 

 

46,000 

Transfer fees 10,000 

 56,000 

8. Cost of materials consumed  

Purchases 23,19,000 

9. Changes in inventory of finished goods, WIP & Stock in trade 

Opening inventory 6,80,000  

Closing inventory 8,23,000 (1,43,000) 

10. Employee benefit expense   

Wages  9,00,000 

11. Finance cost   

Interest on bank loans  1,16,000 

Debenture interest    55,000 

  1,71,000 

12. Other Expenses   

Consumables  84,000 

Preliminary expenses  10,000 

Bad debts  35,000 

Discount  40,000 

Rentals  25,000 
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Commission  1,20,000 

Advertisement  20,000 

Dealers’ aids  21,000 

Transit insurance  30,000 

Trade expenses  37,000 

Distribution freight    54,000 

  4,76,000 

 

QUESTION 14 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

You are required to prepare a Statement of Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet from the 

following Trial Balance extracted from the books of  the  International  Hotels Ltd., on 31st 

March,20X2: 

 Dr. Cr. 

 
Authorised Capital-divided into 5,000 6% Preference 
Shares 

Rs. Rs. 

of Rs.100 each and 10,000 equity Shares of Rs.100 each  15,00,000 

Subscribed Capital -   

5,000 6% Preference Shares of Rs.100 each  5,00,000 

Equity Capital  8,05,000 

Purchases - Wines, Cigarettes, Cigars, etc. 45,800  

- Foodstuffs 36,200  

Wages and Salaries 28,300  

Rent, Rates and Taxes 8,900  

Laundry  750 

Sales - Wines, Cigarettes, Cigars, etc.  68,400 

- Food  57,600 

Coal and Firewood 3,290  

Carriage and Cooliage 810  

Sundry Expenses 5,840  

Advertising 8,360  

Repairs 4,250  

Rent of Rooms  48,000 
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Billiard  5,700 

Miscellaneous Receipts  2,800 

Discount received  3,300 

Transfer fees  700 

Freehold Land and Building 8,50,00
0 

 

Furniture and Fittings 86,300  

Inventory on hand, 1st April, 20X1   

Wines, Cigarettes. Cigars, etc. 12,800  

Foodstuffs 5,260  

Cash in hand  2,200  

Cash with Bankers  76,380 

Preliminary and formation expenses  8,000 

2,000 Debentures of Rs.100 each (6%)   2,00,000 

Profit and Loss Account   41,500 

Trade payables   42,000 

Trade receivables  19,260  

Investments  2,72,300  

Goodwill at cost  5,00,000  

General Reserve    2,00,000 

     19,75,000 19,75,000 

Wages and Salaries Outstanding 1,280   

Inventory on 31st March, 20X2    

Wines, Cigarettes and Cigars, etc. 22,500   

Foodstuffs 16,400   

Depreciation : Furniture and Fittings @ 5% p.a. : Land and Building @ 2% p.a. 

The Equity capital on 1st April, 20X1 stood at Rs.7,20,000, that is 6,000 shares fully paid and 2,000 

shares Rs.60 paid. The directors made a call of Rs.40 per share on 1st October 20X1. A shareholder 

could not pay the call on 100 shares and his shares  were then forfeited and reissued @ Rs.90 per 

share as fully  paid.  The  Directors declare a dividend of 8% on equity shares, transferring any 

amount that may be required from General Reserve. Ignore Taxation. 

Answer 
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Statement of Profit and Loss of International 

Hotels Ltd. for the year ended 31st 

March, 20X2 

 Particulars Notes Amount 

I. Revenue from operations 10 1,83,200 

II. Other income (Discount received) 3,300 

III. Total Revenue (I + II) 1,86,500 

IV. Expenses:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

V. 

Cost of materials consumed 11 25,060 

Purchases of Inventory-in-Trade 12 45,800 

Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in- 
progress and Inventory-in-Trade 

13 (9,700) 

Employee benefits expense 14 29,580 

Other operating expenses 15 18,000 

Selling and administrative expenses 16 14,200 

Finance costs 17 12,000 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 18 21,315 

Other expenses 9 8,000 

Total expenses  1,64,255 

Profit (Loss) for the period (III - IV)  22,245 

Balance Sheet of International Hotels Ltd. as on 31st March, 20X2 

Particulars Note 
No 

Rs. 

Equity and Liabilities   

1 Shareholders' funds   

 a Share capital 1 13,00,000 

 b Reserves and Surplus 2 1,74,745 

2 Non-current liabilities   

 a Long-term borrowings 3 2,00,000 

3 Current liabilities   

 a Trade Payables 4 42,000 

 b Other current liabilities 5 1,07,280 

   Total  18,24,025 
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ASSETS    
 

 
9,14,985 

1 Non-current assets  

 a PPE  

  i Tangible assets 6 

  ii Intangible assets (Goodwill)  

 b Non-current investments  2,72,300 

2 Current assets   

 a Inventories 7 38,900 

 b Trade receivables  19,260 

 c Cash and bank balances 8 78,580 

   Total  18,24,025 

Notes to accounts 

 Rs. 

1 Share Capital   

 Equity share capital   

 Authorised   

 10,000 Equity shares of Rs.100 each  10,00,000 

 Issued & subscribed   

 8,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each  8,00,000 

 Preference share capital   

 Authorised   

 5,000 6% Preference shares of Rs.100 
each 

 5,00,000 

 Issued & subscribed   
5,00,000  5,000 6% Preference shares of Rs.100 

each 

 

 Total  13,00,000 

2 Reserves and Surplus   

 Capital reserve [100 x (90 – 40)]  5,000 

 General reserve 2,00,000  

 Less : Amount used to pay dividend (30,255) 1,69,745 

 Surplus (Profit & Loss A/c) 22,245  

 Add: Balance from previous year 41,500  
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 Transfer from General Reserve 
(94,000 – 41,500) 

 
30,255 

 

 Appropriations  
(94,000) 

 

 Dividend declared - 

 Profit (Loss) carried forward to Balance Sheet 0 0 

 Total  1,74,745 

3 Long-term borrowings   

 Secured   

 6% Debentures  2,00,000 

 
 
 
 

   

 Total  2,00,000 

4 Trade Payables  42,000 

5 Other current liabilities   

 Wages and Salaries Outstanding 1,280  

 Interest on debentures dividend payable 12,000 13,280 

 Preference Dividend (5,00,000 x 6%)  30,000 

 Equity Dividend (8,00,000 x 8%)  64,000 

 Total  1,07,280 

6 Tangible assets   

 Freehold land & Buildings 8,50,000  

 Less: Depreciation (17,000) 8,33,000 

 Furniture and Fittings 86,300  

 Less: Depreciation (4,315) 81,985 

 Total  9,14,985 

7 Inventories  

   

 Wines, Cigarettes & Cigars, etc. 22,500 

 Foodstuffs 16,400 

 Total 38,900 

 

 

8 

 

 

Cash and bank balances 

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

 Cash at bank 76,380 
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 Cash in hand 

Other bank balances 

2,200 

Nil 

  

 

Total 

 

 

78,580 
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QUESTION 15 (STUDY MATERIAL) 

From the following particulars furnished by Pioneer Ltd., prepare the Balance Sheet  as at 31st 

March, 20X1 as required by Schedule III of the Companies Act. Give notes at the foot of the 

Balance Sheet as may be found necessary - 
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Answer 
Pioneer Ltd. 

Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 20X1 
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Particulars Notes Rs. 

 Equity and Liabilities   

1 Shareholders' funds   

a Share capital 1 9,99,000 

b Reserves and Surplus 2 2,96,700 

2 Non-current liabilities   

a Long-term borrowings 3 2,63,500 

3 Current liabilities   

a Trade Payables  2,00,000 

b Other current liabilities 4 67,500 

c Short-term provisions 5 68,000 

 Total  18,94,700 

 Assets   

1 Non-current assets   

a PPE   

 Tangible assets 6 11,25,000 

2 Current assets   

a Inventories 7 2,50,000 

b Trade receivables 8 2,00,000 

c Cash and bank balances 9 2,77,000 

d Short-term loans and advances  42,700 

 Total  18,94,700 

Notes to accounts 

 Rs. 

1 Share Capital   

 Equity share capital  

 Issued & subscribed & called up  

 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each 
(Of the above 2,000 shares have been 
issued for consideration other than cash) 

10,00,000 

Less: Calls in arrears (1,000) 9,99,000 

 Total  9,99,000 

2 Reserves and Surplus   

 General Reserve  2,10,000 

 Surplus (Profit & Loss A/c)  86,700 

 Total  2,96,700 

3 Long-term borrowings   
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